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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors’ report for the year endad 30 September 2017
The Directors of Hyperion presend their report for the financial year ended 30 September 2017.

The Dweclors are required 1o prepare anmual report and audited financial statements contalning centain disclosures. The folowng information has
been included in the strategic report and is incorporated into this repart by reference:

+ Reaview of the performance and fulure development of the Group (sirategic report, pages 4 - 9
+ Principal risks and uncerlainhies {sirategic report, pages 4 - 8)

The following sections of the annual repori and accounts contain all other information required in the Direclors’ report. To the exlent necessary,
information relating o financial instrumnents and financial risk managerment is incorporated inle this report by reference to notes 22 and 28 1o the
conscfidated financial statements.

Hyperion Insurance Group Limiled is the parerd company lor the Hyperion group of companies {"the Group”). The principal acivily of the
Company during the year was thal of a holding and investment company for a group of insurance intermediaries and underwriting agencies. The
Group's trading operations comprise retail insurance broking, specialty and reinsurance broking and underwriting agencies.

Results and dividends

The financial slatements set out the Group's consalidated resulls for the year ended 30 September 2017 and are shown on pages 131077,
These are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporling Standards.

The financial statements {or the Company for the year ended 30 Seplember 2017 ate defalled on pages 78 to 89, These are prepased in
accordance with FR5102.

The loss of the Group for the year afler taxation ard munorily interests amounted to £{56)m (2016. £E48m loss}. Dunng the year no equity dividends
wera paid (2016: £nil).

Events after the reporting petriod

There are a number of post balance sheet avents relating to a change in organisational structure, commitment to the consolidation of four London
office locations Inlo one focation and Caisse de dépdl et placement du Québec ("CDPQ") signing a conditional agreement to becomae a significant
minority shareholder of the Group alongside Gemerat Allantic. Further information is incorporaled into this report by reference to nole 38.

Directors during the year
Detaits of the Direclors of the Company at the date of this report are set oul below.

Dominic Collins, Chainman

David Howden, Chief Exscutive Officer

Ohver Corbett, Chief Financial Officer

Luis Muoz-Rojas Entrecanales, Non-Executive Direclor
John Bemstein, Non-Executive Director

David Hodgson, Non-Executive Director

Clerment Booth, Non-Executive Direclor

Diractors’' indemnities

The Directors are enlitled to an indemnity under the Articles of Association of tha Company. In addition, Directors and Officers of the Company
and ils subsidiaries benefit from Directors’ and Officers' fiability insurance cover in respect of legal aclions brought against them

Articles of Assaciation

The Company's Articles of Associalion sel cut certain matters rélating lo the Company's intemal governance and activities and cover such matters
as the rights of sharehalders, tha appointment and removal of Direclors, the power o issue and buy back shares and tha conduct of Board and
general meelings. A copy of the Articles of Association is avaliable on request to any sharsholder from the Company Secretary. Amendments lo
the Articies of Association must be approved by at least 75% of those voling in person or by proxy af a general meseting of ihe Company

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Assaciation, Direclars can be appointed or removed by the Board or by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Subject to the provisions of relevant legislation, the Company's Anicles of Associatlion and any directions given by a specal
resolution of shareholders, the Board of Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company and may defegale authorities to committeas and
management as it sees fit.
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Share capital

The table below details the numbers of shares in issue Dy the Company on 30 Seplember 2017,

Share class Number of issued shares
Ordinary A Shares of £0.01 78,076,396

Ordinary A1 Shares of E0.01 1,037,178

Qrdinary A2 Shares of EQ 01 518,531

Ordinary B shares of £0.01 1,479,000

Qrdinary C shares of £0.01 4,281,000

Qrdinary D shares of £6.00001 35,620,778

Ordinary E shares of £0.00001 7,300,000

Political donations and expenditure

The Group made politcal donations of £nil during the year ended 30 September 2017 (2016: Enil).

Charitable donatlons

During the year o 30 September 2017 the Group made cash donations of £38,170 {2016: £158,877) for the benefit of chatitable causes

Employees and employment paolicles

The average number of persons empioyed by the Company and ils subsidiaries during the year was 3,794 (2016: 3.587) . Their annual aggregale
remuneration was £290m (2016: £251m). An analysis of employee remuneration is shown in note 6.

The Board recognises that the conlinuing success of the Group depends on ils employees and |ts ability ta conlinue lo attract, molivate and relain
employees of the highest calbre and it aims to pravide an environment where Indivdduals can excel.

The Group is an equal opportunilies employer and bases decisions on Individual ability regardless of race., refigion, gender, age, sexual orientation
or disability. Our equal opportunities policy is designed 1o ensure that disabled persons are given the same consideration as olhers when they
apply for jobs, and that they enjoy the same training career development ard prospects as other employees.

The Group seeks lo achieve a8 COMMON awareness among s employees of the financial and economic factors atlecling the business by means of
consultation and effective employee communication through a variety of madia.

Rasearch and development

The Group invests In software development ta protect and enhance its business acliviliss. See note 10 for more details.
Environmental policy

The Group 1s committed 1o reducing its impact on the environmenlt. To this end il seeks to;

e  Minimise energy, water 2nd paper use

= Oplimise waste racycling by providing facilities and encouraging people to recycle

* Reduce travel, encouraging pecple fo communicate without travelling when practicable

+ Ensure appropriate regulalory compliance
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Going concern

After making enquiries, the Direclors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequale resources 1o conbnue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopl the going concem basis mn prepanng the annusal report and
accounts.

Disclosure of audit information

The Direclors confinm that, as at the date iws annual report and accounls was approved, so Tar as each Diretlor 1s aware there s no 1elevant
audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware and thal he or she has taken all the steps that he or she oughl {0 have laken as a
Director in order 1o make himself or hersell aware of any relevani audit information and to establish that the Company's audior is aware of that
informahion.

{ndependent auditor
Delotte LLP, the Cempany's independent auditor, has expressed its willingness to continua in office.

By order of the Board,

W

Andrew Moore
Company Secrelary
175 December 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2017

Frincipal activitles
The Company is a holting company which receives dividends from ifs operaling subsidiaries.

The priacipal aclivilies of the Group's trading operabons comprise relail insurance broling, specialty and reinsurance brokung and undenwrilng
agencies, i does not take insuranca risk.

The retail broking and risk management business serves clients throughowt the world s clients range from sole praclitoners to associalions,
SMEs and muRinational corporations. It operales a network of subsidiary and associated companies in 27 counines outside of the USA.

The specialty and reinsurance nes broking business creales risk solutions, programmes and facilikes atross a wide range of mdustries and nsk
classes, designing and placing insurance and reinsurance programmes for large international businesses. It does this by accessing specialist
iernational markets and expertise for their clients and delivers indivioual lare corporate placements or mulilne faciblies as appropnate to each
client.

The underwriling agenty business provides end-to-end insurance solutions for a wide range of specialty risks. Itis involved in most parts of the
insurance cycle from pricing to policy issuance and claims administration, acting on behall of major insurance caftiers It does not lake
underwriling risk and is therefore nol capitalised 1o assume such risk. It has operalions in 15 counines and it provides insurance solutions (o aver
4,500 insurance brokers around the world who act on behalf of insured clients.

Business activity

rath d
Operational and structural integralion and consolidation of the Group's businesses has continued throughout the 12 months to 30 September
2017 following Hyperion's acquisition of R K Harison Holdings Limited on 29 Aprit 2015, The Group continues lo work lo achieve deeper
operational integration and clarity of client offering, as well as to ensura that it is agile and appropriately resourced to achieve for fulure growth,

This acuwvity has centred on:

1. Alignment of capabilities into the Group’s thvee segments;
« Consolidation of wholesale trading hubs under RKH to ensure the provision of service to wholesale clients around the world is delivered
effectively and efficiently by specialist teams with in-depth product knowledge;
+ Consolidation of the Group's retail broking businesses under Howden with the UK retad business moving into this segment and oul of
RKH on t October 2017,
2. Formation of a regional management board ta lead DUAL and increased investment in operational resilience and scalability within DUAL;
3. Further streamlining and operational scalability in the delivery of central support senvices by Hyperion Senvices.
Strategic axpangion
In addition to increasing its ownership in a number of partly-owned subsidiaries, the Group made a series of focused acquisitions and launched
new operations in onder {o strengthen its product and distribution capabililes both geographicatly and in terms of specialist market positions.

1. In July 2017 the Group expanded ils Iberoamerican operations wilh the acquisition of automotive, ports and fogislics specialist Bergé y
Asocfados Comedurla de Seguros in Spain, bringing niche expertise across Howden's Spanish and Portuguese speaking markets,

2. In July 2017 the Group expanded its retail brokirig operabons in Asia with the acquisition of Singapore-headquartered Sterling Kinight,
strengthening existing specia capabiities and combining emplayee beneflts businesses to create a strong propoesition in the region.

3. In August 2017 the Group expanded ifs retail broking operations in the United Arab Emirates with the launch of Howden Aby Dhabi,

The Group made good progress in establishing Howden One, its rstall broking partner network. The aim of Howden One s to improve distribution
and servicg provision fa its intemational clients, welcoming 33 independent broking partners fo a single set of service standards and increasing
geographic coverage 10 75 tervitories with a totad of over 5,000 insurance professionals.

Beote _ .

Attraction and relention of talent al al! levels remains a core objective of the Group.,

The Group's commitment to broad employee ownership saw the launch of a second D and E share programme and the completion of its fourth
employee share offer. More than 20% of Group employeas own shases in Hyperion and its subsidiaries.
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Perlormance review

The Group's 2017 audiled financial statements reflect bolh ils organic performance and the results of ils corporate activity during the year, In
parlicutar, its Consolidated income Stalement teflects the accounting treatment of the delarred consideration payabla to the vendors of RKH and
other subsequent transactions and put option held by ex-Windsor sharehciders, both of which distorts reported financial performance.

Set out below is a reconciliation between the financial performance of the Group prepared under IFRS and the underlying performance of the
Group. The Group's preferred measure of profitability is earnings before interest, lax, depreciztion and amortisation ("EBITDA™). The underlying
performance basis of presentation is regarded by the Board as a more informative and usefud analysis of the Group than the statulory basis of
reporting:

FY2017 FYy2016

Erm £m
EBITDA 141 103
Deprecialion and amortisation {41} {38)
Non-recurming items/restructuring costs {75) (82)
Financing costs/{air value adjustments {49) (18)
Impaimment charges {2 -
IFRS loss before tax {26) (35)

Revenue grew from £434m in 2016 to £542m In 2017, an increase of 25%. EBITDA, the Group's preferred measure of profitabilily, increased by
37% from £103m to £141m. Organic ravenue growth was 8%, which the Board regards as a sirong resuil in a tughly competilive operating
envronment. EBITDA margin increased from 24% to 26% reflecting full year benefits of RKH synesgies and the benefits of operational scale.
Margin improved despite challenging market condibions and with ongoing investment n people and operations

The key items in maving from EBITDA ta profit or loss belore tax are as follows:
jgtion an jon;

There have been a number of acquisitions, in pasticular that of RKH, which have rasulted in the recognition of customer refalionship intangible

assets. Customer relationship assets recognised in acquisitions are amortised over their estimated useful economic kves.

Non-recuming ilems:

This includes £62m relating to consideration for acquisitions, the payment of which are linked to ongoing service obiigations and which are
therefore expensed over the period of the service obligation. This relales to the RKH acquisilion in 2015 as well as a number of subsequent
transactions. The balance relates to reiention awards refating to acquisitions, onerous coniracts, gain or loss on sale of subsidiaries and other
non-current assets, hedge termination accounting and other transactions of a non recurring nature.

1 i ts:
The linance charge for Iha year includes £48m of interest costs, of which £42m relates to the Term Loan and RCF {inchuding £4m amortisation of

issue cosls), with the balance relating to financing derivalives, shareholder Joans and other loans, This was partially offset by £1m of interest
income and £2m relating to foreign exchange gain.

Eair val i .
The fair value adjustment for the year reflects £21m charge for the changes In the fair value for deferred consideration for acquisitions or put
oplions held by non-confrolling shareholders, a £1m charge for changes In fair value for derivatives nol used for hedging offset by an £18m gain
for changes In fair value for the put option held by centain shareholders arising from the Windsor acquisition in 2012 {"liquidity put option™).

h, :
This relates to impairment in relation to the goodwill of Harmonia dus to continued weak local economic condilions.
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Financial position

The Group has net liabiliies of £8Tm al 30 Seplember 2017 (net iabilities of £110m at 30 Seplembar 2016} and net current assets of £134m at
30 Septermber 2017 (2016: £35m net current ligbiities), The increase in nel currend assets is due to the drawdown of additional bofrowings
increasing cash, repayment of the RCF and the partial extinguishment of the hquidity put oplion. The decrease in fotal liabilibes is alinbuiable o
positiva gain on translation on consoclidation, positive movemen! on hedging and share based paymeni credits offsetting the loss for the year. The
loss for the year was fargely driven by IFRS acceunting lor tha RKH deferred consideration (E62m).

The averall borowing of the Group net of capitalised fees was £712m at Seplember 2017 which compares to E613m al 30 Seplember 2016,
During the year, the Group entered into incremental financing agreements {o drawdown $60m and €150m of nel additional term joan 1o repay the
RCF, to pre fund deferred consideration in 2017 and to allow Nexibiiity for other ¢orporate activities. The Board of Directors monitor the level of
borrowings of the Group and conlinues to be confident in the ability of the Group to service its ongoing det! obligations as thay fall due,
particularty due lo USD and EUR cash generation which is used te seitle USD and EUR debt obkgations.

Future developments

The Group will continue to grow and develop by investing i’

+ To continue to promote employee ownership in the Group
« Toattract, develop and retain talented individirals

Products
* To be product specialisls and to diversify inlo new and emerging risk areas by recruiting and acquiring hke-minded individuals and businesses
s Tobe market leaders and makers in the geographies in which Hyperion operate

Distri
*  To build a business model focused anound clients and their needs
«  To deliver data and technology-enabled distnbution

Growth
* To generale higher growth than the Group's peers hy delivering attractive and innovalive products and services
* To have a financial model that allows Hyperion to invest in future growth whilst balancing debt and equity to ensura shareholder value

Data and technology

* Tohamess the Group's data (o drive value in all areas from the retention and development of 1alent to the achievement of cross-selling

* Toinvest in, develop and embed technology in all areas of the Group in order ta empower employees, advance product solulions, enhance
service, and speed distribution 1o meel changing client needs
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Risk and governance model
Risk management

As an insurance broking and risk management business, Hyperion deals with risks on behalf of its clients. Underslanding, idenlifying and
managing Hypenan's own fisk profile 15 an important foundation in saleguarding and oplimising the interesls of shareholders, clienis, employees
and other stakeholders,

The Group faces mulliple risks which could cause financial results to be matedally different or operational oulcomes to be contrary (o
management’s objectives and expectations for the business. Risk, as a function of uncertainty, can be both positive and negative, and Hyperion
seeks (o ensure operational and regulatory platforms are designed to mitigate the downside and maximise polential upside of risk.

Hypenon's rsk management approach lakes the form of the Wwee lines of defence framework. Core risk management aclivilies are buill into
business processes, monitored by compliance and nisk management teams withun enfities and divisions, and independently tested through both
wlernal and external audil, as well as through rewews required by its insurer trading partners.

Risks at trading level are managed withm each division and monitored through nsk based assurance processes. Risk management forums are

established at vafious fevels wilhin the operating busmesses. The Audit Commiliee prondes oversight and challenge across the Group, As

Hyperion grows, the function and composilion of ils assurance mechanisms and governance forums are reviewed 1o ensure that independent
challenge remans robust and effective.

Second L.ihc 6f'[.)efem:'e Third tine of Defence

Risk & Compliance Functions ': Independent assurance

Riskmanagement framework

Policy & standard setting - internal & external audit

) functions
Communication & training

Risk based, targeted
Advice &assurance assurance

Maonitoring & auditing Audits & review

Governance: Risk Committee Governance: Audit
’ ' : ) Committee
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The lollowing table sets out the Group's principal nsks with examples given of actions taken ta mitigate such risks: transferring, avoiding, reducing
or accepting such risks within agreed loferances. Itis not intended to be taken as an exhaustive list, but dlustrabive of significant risks to which the
Group is exposed.

STRATEGIC RISKS -

e - BT it L

“ Ry f.

COMPETITIVE MARKET

The Insurance market Is highly compeltitive.
There is a focus on client relationships,
branding, cost. market penelration and
diversity ol product offering.

Hyperion locuses on serving clients in certain
markels where the Board believe it has a
competiive advantage. Hyperion seeks Ip
mainain strong relationships with clients at
many levels. Hyperion monilors this via
divisional reporling on key metrics including
organic and inorganic growth.

EXTERNAL ECONOMIC FACTORS
AFFECTING OUR BUSINESS

As economic activty increases and reduces,
nsk evenis may or may not occur, and the
demand for insurance coverage generally
rises and falls. These changes affect
brokerage, commissions and fees eamed in
the market.

The batanced distribution model covering both
broking and underwsiting helps  mitigate
external risks facing the wider induslry.
Hyperion's devolved management structure
enables decistons o be laken at the right jevel
{for risk to be mitigated and opportunities
brought by external change lo be optimised

INTEGRATION WITH ACQUIRED
COMPANIES

An linportant parl of Hyperion's growth is to
join with high quality businesses in emergmng
markets.

Hyperion empowers businesses to manage
integration locally. This approach provides
management with the opporiunity lo move

quickly in identifying, assessing and
integrating businesses into the
Group.

FINANCIAL RISKS o i .

ABILITY TO MAKE INTEREST ANC | Interest and capital payments depend on cash | In addition to the day to day financing of

CAPITAL PAYMENTS flow generated lrom operations. operations, servicing the term loan raised is

predicated on appropriate financial confrols.
These cohtrols ensure that adequate cash
fiows are maintained and working capital is in
place (o meet financial obligations, Sell
imposed working capital buffers enable cash
use fo be optimised. interest rate risk is
miligated by appropriate hedging.

HOLDING OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
CURRENCY

A progortion of the Group's business is
conducted in currencies other than sleding, in
which Hyperion's accounts are reported.
Receipls, expenses, assels and liabliites are
therafora exposed to movements in foreign
currency exchardge rates. The main axposures
are to the US Dolar, Euro. Australan Dollar
and Canadian Dollar. In the UK, part of
Hypesion's revenuse Is in foreign currencies,
however, expenses ara bomp in sterhng.

Financial transactions are frequently naturaily
hedgad but where natueal hedging is deemed
fo be inadequate to meet risk appetite, the
Board has approved a risk mitigation strategy
that is exercised withvn a defined appetite and
through appropriate approval and authorisation
controls.

ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS AND
ESTIMATES

Financial statements are prepared in
accordance with intemational Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRS). Hyperlon is
required ta make assumptions and judgmental
eslimatas thal affect the reported amounts of
assets and liablities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and labilities at the date of
our financiat stalements.

Management review  assumptions  and
judgmental estimates including those related
to camying value of goodwill in acquired
enlities, revenua recognilion, derivative
liabilities contingent liabilities and laxation, and
these are the subject of second and third line
of defence oversight and review
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‘OPERATIONAL RISKS

L P P

LOSS OF KEY PERSONNEL

Hyperion reliess on  highly trained and
experienced staff {o support and undertake
broking and underwriling business.

Hyperion remains commitied lo employee
ownership, empowering managers o act as
‘owners’ of the business. Hypenon s
managed by Senr employees within the
Group who have many years of experience
and expertise and who undersland and value
the coniribution of its stall acioss 1he Group.
in addition, a high level of employea ownership
akgns interests across the
Group.

LOSS OF KEY CLIENTS

Hyperion depends on underlying operations to
ensure chant satisfacton. H Hypenon is
unable to operala affectvely the loss of client
satisfaction coukd resuk in ham to the
businass and financial performance.

Hyperion seeks {0 observes best praclice,
along with tha necessary regulatory coatrols,
due digence and care to ensute that its
operations meet our dients’ satisfaction,
Diversification of  business  line  and
geography, and successiul new busness
strategies Turther helps mitigate the impact of
natural client lumover,

FAILURE OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS

Information technology sysiems ara a key par
of Hyperion's business and any disruption of
systems or the supporting infrasiructyre and
networks could adversely affect its operations,
ncome and financial results,

Management continue to invest in information
technology solutions, with a focus on robust,
safe and refiable syslems and coatiols. Risk
based testng is underaken lo salisly
management that s |7 infrastructure remains
robust.

LEGAL AND REGILATORY RISKS

'PROCESS CONTROL FAILURE

Hypefioth may be sublect lo errors and
omissions claims in placing or underwriting
Insyrance (¢ gdeang with claims, It ¥ nol
always possible lo prevent ermors and
omissions clams occurring and damages
under such claims may cause s financial
position to be adversaly affecled, as well as
divering management lime and causing
reputational damage.

Intemal controls embedded into the day-to-day
operations of the business are designed lo
mutigate  the sk 10 an  acceplable
level.

POLITICAL RISK

Hypefion may be subject to risk due lo political
changes impacting the jurisdictions in which it
trades.

i recen! times e most relevant political risk
is Brexit.

Hyperion’s diversified business model maans
that's exposura (o concentrated polincal risk is
mitigated.

In respect of Brext, Hyperion has underiaken
detaled analysis to delermine polential
exposure and has put into piace contingency
plans to ensure il s well placed to meet the
rigk.

hREGULATORY RISK Hyperion may be subject to legal and |Hyperion recognises and upholds is
regulatory issuey that, once crystalised, may [ responsibilities to all stakeholders, including
adversely affect is financial resulis. regulators, in all jurisdictions.

A the Board and signed on its behalf by

David Howden

Chwef Executive

13 December 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with apphicable law and regulations.

Company law reguires the Direclors to prepare financial siatements for each financial year. Under that Jaw the direclors have elected lo prepare
the group financial slatements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adapled by the European Union and the
parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland™. Under
campany law the Direclors must not approve the financial statements urndess they are satisfied that they gve a true and talr view of the slate of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period,

fn prepanng the parent company financial siatemenls, the Directors are required to:

+ Select suitable accounling policies and then apply them consistently

+  Make judgments and accounling estunates that are reasonable and prudent

+ Siate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subjeci to any malerial departures dischosed and explained in the
financial slalemenis

«  Prepare the financial statements on the golng concem basis unless it is inappropriate lo presume that the Company will conlinue in business

In preparing the Group financia statements, Intemational Accounling Standard 1 requires that the Directors®
«  Propery select and apply accounting policies
« Presentinformation, including accounting policies, in a manner that pravides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information

+ Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are Insufficient lo enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other evenlts and conditions on the endity's financial position and financial performanca

+ Make an assessment of the Company's ability to conlinue as a going concern
The Directors are responsible jor keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transaclions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posifion of the Company and enable them lo ensura thal the financial stalements

comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and deteclion of fraud and olher iregularities.

The Directors are responsibie for the maintenance and integrity of the Group websile, www.hyperiongrp.com. Legislation In the United Kingdom
governing lhe preparation and dissemination of financlal statements may differ from legrsiation in other jursdiclions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

Opinlon

In our opinion the group financial siatements:

«  Give a true and fair view of the slate of the Group's affars as at 30 September 2017 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended
« Have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS3s) as adopted by the Eurapean Union; and
= Have been prepared in accordance with the requremenis of the Companes Act 2006.

We have audited the financial slalements of Hyperion Inswance Group Limited (the ‘parent company’) and and ils subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) which
comprise:

+ The consolidated income stalement

« The consoldaled statement of comprehensive income

«  The conschdaled balante sheet

» The consolidated stalement of changes in equity

«  The consolidated cash flow stalement

* The refated noles 1to 38

The financial reporting framework 1hat has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial stalements is applcable law and [nlernational
Financial Reporiing Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basls for oplnion

We conducled our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs(UK}} and applicable law Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described In the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial stalements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group In accordance with the ethical requirements that are retevant Lo our audit of the financial stalements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Concluslons relating to geoing ¢concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the fdlowing malters where
« The Direclors’ use of the going concem basis of accourting in preparation of the financial staternents is not appropriate, or
+ The Direclors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncentainties that may cast significant doubt about the

group’s ability lo continue to adopt the going concern basls of accounting for a penod of at least twelve months from the dale when the
financial stalemenis are authorised for issue

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information, other than the financial stalemanis and
our suditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial stalaments does not cover the olher information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audil of the financial statements, our responsibility is 10 read the other information and, in doing so, consider whethar the
other information is malerially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained In the audlt or otharwise appears lo be
materially misgtated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaiemenis, we are required 1o delerming whether there
is a material misstalement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude thal there is a material misstatement of this olher information, we are required (o report that fact

We have nothing to report in respect of Lthese matters,

"



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

Responsibifities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Direclors are responsible for the preparation of the financial stalements
and {or being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal conirol as the Direclors delermine is necessary to enable the
preparalion of finaricial staternents that are free from material misstaternent, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the Direclars are responsible for assessing the Group’s abildy (o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matiers related (0 going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the dreciors either intend to liquidate the
group or lo cease operations, or have no realistic allemative bui to do so.

Auditor's responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements

Our cbjectives are Io oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audifor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
nol a guarantee that an audrt conducted in accordance with iSAs (UK) will always delec! a materfal misstatement when it exists. Missiatements
can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material . indwidually or in the aggregale, ihey could reaspnably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on {he basis of these hinancial statements,

A lurther description of our responsibifities for the audil of the financial stalements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www, [rc.org.uiaudilorsresponsibilities, This description fomns part of our agdilor's report.

Use of our report

This repont is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Acl 2006, Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we rmight state lo the Company’s members those malters we are requived to stale to them in an auditor's report
and for no clher purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accep! or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and
the company's members as a body, for our audil work, for this report, or for Lhe opinions we have formad.

Raport on other legal and regulatory requiremants
Opinlons ot other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based o the work undertaken in the course of the audit

» The information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial stalements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements

» The strategic repori and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group: and its environment oblained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any
material misslalements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

QOther matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financlal statements of Hyperion Insurance Group Limited for the year ended 30 September

2017, /

o\
G-t / a—
Mark Mchquham, ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delcitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

ondon UK
3™ December 2017
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HYPERION
ENSURAMNCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
COMSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3§ SEPTEMBER 2017
o “ YEAR END YEAR END
30 SEFTEMBER 30 SEPTEMBER
2017 2016
(restated)
— . - Nole . Eoon - FEO00
Gontinuing operations
Fees and commissions 3 532,309 423,932
Other operating income 3 9,350 9,947
Oiher operating cosis {477,128) {412,507)
Depreciation and amortisation 4 (41,198) (37.947)
Opaorating profit/{loss) 23,333 {16.575)
Analysed as:
Oparating profit befors non-recurring items 59,777 65,291
Acquisition costs 4 (1.331) {750}
Non-tecurring ilems 4 (75.113) (81,116}
Opaerating profiti(loss) 23,333 {18,575)
Finance income 5 683 1,934
Finance costs 5 {45,663) {32,177)
Loss before changes in fair value through profit or loss {21,547) {46,818)
Fair value through prefit or joss 5 (4,052) 11,370
Loss before tax for the year (25,699) (35,448)
Income tax expense 7 (17,138) ({5,809)
Loss after tax from continuing operations (42,835) {41,357)
Loss attributable to
Group shareholders (56,393) {48.063)
Non controlling interests 13,548 6,706
{42,835) {41,357)

Revenue and operaling profit/{loss) for the year and prior year arose from continuing operatons only. Tha comparative has been restaled - sea

nete 1 Tor detalls
Tha notes on pages 20 to 77 form an integral part of these consolidated financiat statements,
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HYPERION
INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
YEAR END YEAR END
30 SEPTEMBER 30 SEPTEMBER
2017 2016
{restaled)
Note £'000 £000
Losgs for the year {42,835) {41,357)
Other comprehensive income
#erns that may be reclassified o profil or lass in subsequent years
Revaiuation of cash flow hedging instruments, net of tax 9,498 (18,495)
Amounts recycled from cash fllow hedge reserve to income stalement, net of lax 5,241 5518
Translation of foreign operaions, et of tax L acaaln 24485 .36y
39,224 (66.671)
Rems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequant years
Remeasurement of defined benefil pension plans. nel o tax e cmean (L I (116)
{6} {116}
Other comprehensive income! {loss) for the year 39,218 {66,787)
Total comprehensive incoms for the period {3,617) (108.144)
Profitsf(loss) attributable to.
Group shareholders (16,582) (118472
Non-controlling Inferests 13,345 10,328
{3617) (108,144)

Comprehensive income for the year arose from conlinuing operations only The comparalive has been restaled see note 1 for details.
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HYPERION
INSLIRANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 SEPTEMBER 2017
m17 2016 2015
{restated) {restated)
Note £000 £'000 £000 £'000 E'000 FO30
HNon-current assets
Goadwil g 18,929 3BT 280,022
Imangible fixmd assats 10 247,630 267,126 244,611
Progerty, plant and equipment 11 11,821 13,315 17,410
invesiments held at cost 12 1,186 1,184 1,052
investments in associates and joinl venturas 13 508 23 -
Trade and other receivables 14 730 2,040 3017
Delerred tax asset 23 14,627 8,688 10,027
595,431 609,109 556,199
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 51,833 61,098 53,947
insurance recenable 14 113,135 125,304 94,214
Cash and tash equivalents 15 134,248 79,083 130,817
Inswanke cash and cash equivalants 15 494,153 475070 333,330
793,369 740,555 612,308
Current payablas
Insurance payables 16 (475,444) (473,035) (329,6901
Trade and othar payables 16 {135,82y) 172,110} {143,674}
Bank overdafl 15 {1,636) {1,380} (1,190)
Corporation lax payable 16 {8,336} {17.340) (16.340}
Borrowings 18 {5.056) (46.034) (2120}
Liquidity pul option 19 (2.666) (23,354} -
Provisions 20 {4.368) {7,139 (7.066)
Dartvative financial instruments 22 {26,535) {35,158} (7,337)
[659,!84) {775 529) {514.417)
Net current assets/ {payables) 133,505 {34,974 97,891
Non-current payables
Borowings 18 (707.401) (567,268) {490,301)
Trade and olher payables 17 (19,381) {5,311 (37,363)
Provisions 20 (5,431) {3.634} {4,385)
Deferred lax liatditias 23 {48,643) {52,083} (51,386)
Liquiddy pul option 19 12,439) - {49,239}
Dativative inancial instruments 22 {32,268) {56,246) {47,037}
[815.567) {6684 548) {679,711}
Total net payablas {88,631) _{110,413) {25,621}
Equity
Izsued shate caplal 854 854 are
Share premium 4,094 4,094 254,208
Ohher reserves {86,810} (152,938) (69,679)
Liguidity put option - {48.118) (48,118}
Acmquisition share eserve {32,659) {77,182} {112,367
Retained earnings {10,656) 127.800 {76.580)
Sharsholders’ squily 125177} {145 090) {52,159
NC| 38,546 35677 26,538
YTotal guhy {86,631) (110.413) [25,621)
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HYPERION
INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 SEPTEMBER 2017

The comparalive has been restated - see note 1 for detals,

The financial slatemants were approved by 1ha Board of Direclors and authonsed for 1ssue on 13 Qecember 2017. They wete signed on ils behall
by

(e dinnns

Da on Dliver Corbett
Chvel Executive Dificer Chief Financial Officer

Company number 02937398
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HYPERION
. INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

2017 2016
Cash flow from operating activities £°000 £'000
Cash receipts from customers 553507 403,676
Cash pard lo suppliers and employees {428,221} (307,047)
Cash generated from operations 125,286 86,659
Corporation tax payments (5,955) (12,185)
Interest paid (49,208) (31,923}
Interest received 1916 1,172
Net cash generated from operating activities 72,039 53.713
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and inlangibles assets (10,646) {14.389)
Investrnent in subsidiaries (7.110) {22,377)
Acquisition costs {1,390) (381)
Investment In associates and joinl ventures {320) (20)
Cash on acquisition of subssdiary 1.370 5531
Proceeds from disposal of operations - 1,862
Loans from invesling aclivities - external {1.100) (100)
Net cash used in investing activitias {19,256} {20.874)
Cash flows from financing activities
Settlement of deferred consideration obligations (72,285) (89,630}
Repayment of shareholder loans {10,815) {2.722)
Issue of bank borrowings 224 961 38.000
Repayment of bank borrowings (88,899) -
Repayment of other borrowings (723) (7.281)
Purchase of own shares - employee share scheme (4,989) (3.050})
Finance lease capital repayments (1,072) {1.371)
Acquisiion of non-confroling interests {30,784 (7.435)
Dividends payable to non-controling shareholders (12,222) {8,765)
Net cash generated (used) from financing activities 3472 (82,254)
Net increase/(decrease} in own cash and cash squivalents 55,955 (58,415)
Forelgn exchange on retranslation of cash balances {1,067} 6,512
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 October 2016 77,724 129,627
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 2017 132,612 77,724
Insurance cash at beginning of period 475,070 33330
Net insurance cash inflow for the period 19,083 141,740
Insurance cash at end of period from continuing operations 434153 475870

Cash flows for the year arose from continuing operations only
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HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting pdicies adopted in the preparation of these consolidaled Fnancial statements are set out batow.
{a) Accounting convention

Statement of compllance with IFRS

The Group has prepared its consolidated financial stalements under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopled by the
European Union. IFRSs comprise slandards and interprelalions appraved by the Intemational Accounting Standards Boerd (JASB) and the
International Financial Reporting Interpretalions Committee (IFRIC) as adopled in the Furopean Union that are in effect as at 30 September 2017,
or which have been adopled sarly.

Basis of prepacation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial instruments and
denvative financial instruments. Hislorical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for the assets.

The significant accounting policles that have been applied in the preparation of these consobdated financial statements are summarised below.
The accounting policies have been used throughout all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Going concern

Further information regarding the Group's business aclivities, together with the faclors likely lo alffect its fulure development, performance and
posiion are sel out in the sirategic report. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the notes lo the accounts. In addition, note 286 to the financial stalements inchides the Group's firancial risk management objectives,
detalls of its financial instruments and hedging aclivites, and its exposures to credit risk and fiquidity risk.

The Group is subject 1o one principal financial covenan! as part of the drawdewn of its USD and EUR term facililies totalling £722m (2016,
£569m) gross of issuance costs, and was compiiani with that covenant throughou! the year ended 30 September 2017. The Group monitored tha
covenant position through roling forecasts of the income statement and cash flow for a period to Decernber 2018 and Is forecas! to be compliant
during this forecast period and have sufficient cash resources to meeat habilitles as they fall due.

Management have applied sensilivity analysis and identiffed scenarios whera the Group would be forecast to braach the financial covenant or not
have sufficienl cash resources to meel iabilities as they fall due. Management have considered the likelihood of the scenarios and deem il to ba
low due to the mitigating actions management could undertake. These include cost control, increasing overseas repatriation of cash, reducing
elective activity such as M&A and raising further cash through debt or equity,

Having considered these facts and circumslances, and after making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for tha foreseeable future. Accordingly. they continue lo adopt the gong
concem hasis in preparing the consolidaled financial statements.

Presentation of financial statemants In accordance with IAS 1 (Revised 2007)

The consolidated financial stalements are prepared in accordance with IAS 1 "Presenlation of Financial Stalements® (Revised 2007). The Group
has elected to present the "Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive fncoma” in two stalements: the "Consolidated Income Stalement” and the
"Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income”,

The consolidated cash flow stalemaent has been prepared showing separately comporate funds, being the Group's own cash balances, and
insurance funds, being funds held on behalf of clienls antd insurers In nor-statutory trust accounts,
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HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards {Standards)

These are no new siandards, amendments or interpretations which have been adopied for the first ime and have a signficant impact on the
accounting policies applied i preparing the Group's consolidaled financial statements.

At the dale of the authorisabon of the consolidated financial slatements, the Direclors are in process of assessing the impact of IFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers®, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018, IFRS 16 "Leases”,
which wili be effective for annual periods begimning on or alter 1 January 2019, and IFRS 2 "Financia instruments (2014)° which will be efleclive
for annual pericds heginning on or after 1 January 2018. A number of cther new standards, amendments and mierpretations were in issue but not
yet mandatory or effective. Excluding IFRS 9, 15 and 16, the Directors do not anticipate that the adoplion of these standards, amendments and
interpretations will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial stalements in future periods.

Changes in accounting policy

in January 2016 IFRIC ssued a final agenda dectsion on 1AS 39, Separation of an embedded floor from a floating ratle host confract. IFRIC
observed that in assessing whether an embedded floor was closely related to the host contract or nol, an enlity should compare the overall interest
rate {or the Insttument with a floor 1o the market rate of interest for a similar contract without the inlerest rate floor. Historically the Group has
compared only the interest rate of the floor component to the vanable interest rate In assessing whelher it is closely related or not. Based on the
{FRIC agenda decision, the Group has changed ils policy o compare the overall interest rate for instrument with a floor (o the market rate of
interest for a similar contract withoul the floor The change in poicy has resulted in previously separated embedded derivalives how being
concluded as closely related and therefore not required {o be separated from the host contract. The impact of the restatement is as follows:

s at 1
£000s £'000s
As previously
As restated reported
Consolidated Statement of Financial Posltion
Mon-current borrowings (450,301) - {480,899}
Non-current derivative financiat instruments (47.037) . (58,431)
Net payables {25,621) (27.613)
Retained eamings {76.580) {78,572)
Total equity (25,621) (27,613}
As tem| 1
£'000s £000s
As praevigusly
As restated reported
Consolkiated Statement of Financial Position
Current derivative financial instruments (35,158) (37.050)
Non-current borrowings {567,268) {557,828)
Non-current derivative financial instruments {56,246) {66,108)
Nat payables {110,413) {112,725)
Other reserves (152.938) {151,132}
Retained samings 127.800 123,682
Total equity {110,413) (112,725)
Consolidated Income statement
Finance Costs (32177) (34,303)
Loss bafore tax {46,818) (43,944)
L oss after tax {35,448) (37,574)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehansive Income
Transiahon of foreign operations (53,694) {51,888)
Total comprehensive loss {108,144) (108,464)
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HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes lo the Consclidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

(b} Basis of consolidation

The Group’s financial stalements consolidate the financial slatements of the Company and its subsidary underlakings for the year ended 30
September 2017. The results ol acquired businesses sre consoiidated from the date on which the Group obtains effective conlrol of the
subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are entilies controlled by the Group. Confrol exists where the Group is exposed Lo or has the nghis to vanable relumns from its
involvement with the invesiee and has Whe ability to use ils power over lhe investee lo affect its retums. Unrealised gains and losses on
fransactions with subsidiaries or associates are eliminaled. Transactions with associates are efiminaled o the extent of the Group's interest In
those entifies in preparing the consolidated financial statements,

{c) Business combinations

The acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisilion method. The consideration ransferred 1s measured as the fair value of
assets given, liablities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group af the date of exchange, Any costs directly atiribulable to
the business comhbination are booked to the incoma stalement as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and Habilities and contingent liab lities
assumed, meeling the conditions for recognilion under IFRS 3 "Business Combinations®, are recognised at their falr valua at the acquisition date.
inespective of the extenl of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Subsequent changes in the fair value of consideration transferred or identifiable assels,
liabiiities and contingent kabilities assumed are adjusted whese they qualify as measurement period adjusiments The measurement period is the
period from the dale of acquisition o the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of one year. All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as
an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs,

{d) Joint ventures and investments ln assoclates

Joing venlures are those entities over which the Group has joint control with giher investors but which are neither subsidiaries nor associates.
Asscociales are those enlities over which the Group Is able 10 exert significant influence but which are nesther subsidiaries nor joint ventures. Joint
ventures and investments in associates are inibally recognised at cos! and subsaquently accounted for using the equity method.

{e} Operating profit
Operating profit is staled before finance income, finance costs and changes in fair value through profit or loss.
{0 Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial stalements of each of the Group's ertlilies are maasured in the currency of the pnmary aconomic envirohment in
which it operates (ils funclional cumency). The consolidated financial stalemenls are presented in pounds stering, which Is the Tunctional
currency of the parent company ani the presentational currency of the Group.

The results of the foreign subsidiaries have been translated using the average of monihly exchange rates. Assels and fiabilities of overseas
subsidiades denominated in foreign cusrencies are transiated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; profits and losses ara
translated into pourds sterling at average exchange rates for the relevant accounting periods. Exchange differences anising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and transferred lo the translation reserve. On the sale of a subsidiary. such translation déferences are recognised
as ncome or expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

(g) Revenue recognition

Revenue consists principally of brokeraga, commissions and fees associated with the placement of insurance and reinsurance contracls, net of
commissions payable lo other directly involved parties. Revenues from brokerage, commissions and fees are recognised on the inception date of
the risk. Where risk inception is dependent on an event occurring oulside the control of the Group, judgement is exercised as 1o the whether the
oulcoma is highly probable or nol. If the event is nol deemad highly probable, then revenus is nat recognised until the uncertainty has resolved.
Where there is a risk of cancellation or retum of conwnissions on Inceplion/placement of the policy, an appropriate amount of revenue Is deferred
based on besi estimate of probability of canceliation or retum based on prior contract, Any adjustments to commissions arising from premium
additions or reductions are recognised as and when they ara notified by third parfies.
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Where conlractual obligations exist for the performance of post placement activilies, a relevant proportion of revenue received on placement is
deferred and recognised ovet the penod during which those aclivities are performed.

Prafit commission is recognised when the amount can be estimaled. with a reasonable degree of certainty, and 1s equivalent 1o the minmum value
expected lo be received.

{h) Discontinued operations and non-current assets heid for sale

Non-current assels and dispasal groups classified as held for sale, and disconlinued operations, are measured af the Jewer of camying amount
and fair value less costs 1o sell,

Non-cyrrent assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carmying amoun! will be recovered tyough a sale lransaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset {or disposal group) is avadable
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management mus! be cammitted 1o the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification,

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or that is classified as held for sale, and {a) represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; and (b} is a part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate maor
line of business of geographical area of operations; or (c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Any gain or loss from disposal of a business, together with the resulls of these operalions unid the dale of disposal, Is reported separately as
discontinued operations The financial infermation of discontinued operations is excluded from the respective caplions in the consolidated financial
slalements and related notes for all years presented.

(I} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference hetween the consideration transferred and the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabllties of the business combinations at the dales of the acquisilions. Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently reviewed for
Impairment annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement,

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the dale of transition to IFRSs has been retained al the previous UK GAAP value subject 1o being tested
for imparment al that date. Goodwill written off 1o reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1898 has not been reinslated and is not inclueded in
determining any subsequent profit or koss on dispoasal. All negative goodwill was eliminated on transition 1o IFRS.

Tha Group has determined that for the purposes of impairment tesling, goodwili is allocated to sach of the Group's cash-generaling units (CGUY),
or group of CGUS o which it relates, Cash-generating units, or groups of CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated are lested for impaiment
annually, Recoverable amounts for cash-generaling units compared against their carrying vatue. If the recoverable amount of the unit Is fess than
the carmying amount of the gocdwill, the impairment foss s aliocated 10 reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Acquisilions of non-conirofing interests are accounted for as lransactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefora na
further goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions.

{} Intangible assats

Patents & softwares

Acquired palents & computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use tha specific software.
These cosis are amortised over their estimated useful fives between thres and ten years. Costs associated with maintaining computler software
programs are recognised as an axpense as incurred. Cosls that are direcily associaled with the production of identifiable and unique software
products contralled by the Group and that will generate economic benefils exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as inlangible assels.
Direct costs include the software development employee costs.
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Cusiomer relationships & brands

Customer relationships such as access (o distribubion networks and cuslomer lists that arise because (he acquiree company has a pracice of
establishing mnsurance contracts with its customers are measured at fair value at the date of the business combination. The fair value of customer
relabonships & brands are deterfwned using a discounted cash flow analysis. Besi estimale assumptions for renewal rates and expenses are
used in calculaling the far value. Customer relalionships & brands are amortised over the penod over which benefils are expecied to be derived
from these relationships, which can be up 1o 19 years. Customer relabonships & brands are reviewed annually for impairment.

Other Intangible assets

Other intangible assels compnse of acquired entifiable non-monetary assels withoul physical form; these include non-compele conltracts that
have been recogrused on the acquisition of subsidianes. Other intanglble assels are carried at cost less accumulaled amortisation. Amortisation
on olher intangible assets |5 calculated using the straighl-line methed to allocate the cast over their estimaled useful lives. whuch is normally
esumated lo be between five and ten years.

{k} Pension commiments
Defined contributlon schame

The Group operales a number of defined contribution schemes. The amount charged 1o the income siatement in respect of pension costs and
other post-retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year, Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions
actually pald are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The Group has no fegal or
constructive obligation to make any further payments to the plans other than the contributions due

Defined benefit schema

The Group has one legacy defined benefit pension scheme which is closed 1o new members and which has one deferred member. Full actuarial
valuations of the scheme are carried out at least every three years. A qualified Independent acluary updaled these valualions as al 30 Seplernber
2017. For the purposes of these annual updales, scheme assels are included al markel value and scheme Kabilies are measured on an acluarial
basis using the projected unit method. The defined benefit surplus or deficit is inchided in the Group's statement of financial position. A surplus s
included only lo the extent that it is recoverable through reduced contributions it the future or through refunds from the schems. The current
senvice cosl, any past service cosis and the expected relum on the scheme's assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of the discount on
scheme liabilities, are included in the iIncome statement. Actuarial gains and losses, including differences between the expected and actual retum
on scheme assets, are recognised through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame.

{} Flnancial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party fo the contraciual provisions of tha financial instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised when the conlractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assels expire, or when the financial assel and
all substantial isks and rewands are transferred. A financial liablity Is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, canceiled or axpires.

Financial assels and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus transaction cosis, axcepl for (inancial assels and financial liabililies
carried at fair vatue through profit or loss, which are measured [nibally at fair value and as described below.

Financial assetls

The Group's financial assats include cash and cash equivalent, loans and receivables and derivative financial assets. Financial asseis olher than
those designated as hedging instruments or derivatives, are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
Evidence of impaiment includes the asset being past the due date of payment or it is probable that the specific counderparty will default.
Impairment of financial assets is presenled within "olher operating costs”,

Financial assels used as hedging instruments and derivatives are measured al fair vaiue. Changes in the fair valua are recognised wilhin
“Changes in fair value though profit or 10ss” unless the instrument is designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument, for which hedge
accounting is applied.

24



I

HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERJION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes lo the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Saptember 30, 2017

Loans and recajvablas

Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial assels wilh fixed or determinable payrnents that are not quoled in an aclive marked, After initial
recognilion these are measured al amortised cosl using the effective inlerest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omilled where
the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables [all into this calegory of financial
instruments,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profil or loss include financial assels thal are either classified as held for trading or that meel cerlain
conddions and are designated al fair value through profit or loss upen initial recognition. Alf derivative financial instruments fall wo this category,
except for those designated and effeciive as hedging instruments, for which hedge accounting is applied.

Assels In this category are measured at fair value with the gains and losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair values of derivative financral
instruments are determined by reference to expecied fulure payments.

Financial liabilitles R

The Group's financial llabitities include borrowings, trade and other payables, deferred and contingent consideration. put options in respect of
minority intesests, the Bquidity put option and derivative financial instrumenis. Financial kiabiities other than those designaled as hedgmng
instruments or designated as fair value through profit or loss are measwed al amortised cost using the effective inlerest method.

Contingent consideration, put options to minorily inleresls, the liquidity put oplion, financial liabilities used as hedging instruments and denvatives
are measured at fair valua. Changes in the fair value are recognised within “Changes in far value though profit of loss™ uniess the instrument 15
designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument, lor which hedge accounting is applied.

Trade and other payables
Yrade payables are initially measured at fair velue and subseguently measured al amortised cos!.
Borrowings

Borrowings ara initially measured at fair value, net of transaction cos!s incurred. Thay are subsequently measurad at amorlised cost using the
effective interest rale methed.

impairment of financlal assels

All financial assets except Lhase at fair value through profit or loss are subject (o raview for impalrment al least at each reporting date. Financial
assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial assel or a group of finarcial assets is impaired Different critenia for the
determination of impairment are appiied for each category of financial assets. The Group's financial assels are limiled to loans and receivables
and financial asselts at fair value through profit or loss.

indwidual recelvables are considened for impainment when they are past the due dale of payment or when other objective evidenca is received that
a specific counterparty wil default. Impainment of trade receivables is prasentad within "ather operating costs™.

(m) Derivative financial instruments

Tha Group enters Into derivative financial instruments in order to hedge undertying interest rate and foreign cumency exposures. The Group
designates certan derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions {cash flow hedga).

At the inception of the cash flow hedga the relationship between hedging Instruments and hedged items, as well as the Group's risk management
abjective and sirategy for undertaking various hedge transactions are documented.

Assessments, both at hedge inceplion and on an engoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and
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will continue to ba highly effective in offselling changes in the cumulative change in Fair value of the expecied fulure cash Mows on the cash fiow
hedged items, are also docunrented.

The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in a hedge
reserve in equily. The gain or kass in relation 1o the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement. Amounis
accumulated in the hedge reserve in equity are transfemed lo the Consclidated Income Stalement in tha periods when the hedged item will affect
profit and loss.

In the situation where a hedge is lerminaled, a hedging insirument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets lhe crileria for hedge
accounding, any cumulative gain or loss exisling in equity at that lime remains in the hedge reserve and 1s recognised in the same periods during
which the hedged comtmitrnent or forecast transaction atfects the income slatement. When a hedged commitment or forecast transaction is no
longer expecied o occur, the cumulalive gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately trans’erred to the Consolidated Income Statement.

{n) Share-baged payments

The Group issues share awards to employees. The Group operales a number of share-based compensation schemes and applies the
requirements of IFRS 2 "Share-based Paymenis™.

The cost of employees’ senvices received in exchange for the grant of righls under these schemes is measurad at tha fair value of the equity
instruments granted and is charged in the Consdlidated income Statement over the vesling period. For cash-settied schemes the 1air value is re-
assessed each year and any changes are recognised in the Consolidaled Income Statement unlil the liability is setted.

{0} Leases

In accordance with IAS 17 “Leases”, where the Group has substantially afl lhe risks and rewards of ownership, leases are classified as finance
leases. Fmance leases are capitalised al the lease's inception at the lower of the Jair value of the teased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease paymenis. Each lease payment Is aflocated between the Hability and finance charges so as ta achieve a conslant rale on the
finance balance oulstanding.

The asset subject to the finance lease is depreclaled over the shorter of its usedul life and the lease term. The comesponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are recognised as a Kability.

Ali other leases are trealed as operaling leases. Paymenls made under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease lerm. Incentives provided by the fessor are tredited to the Consolidated Incomne Statement on a slraight-line basis
aver the full lease term.

{p} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is staled al cost lass accumulaled depreciation and impairment fosses. Cost includes expenditure thal is directly
atiributable to the acquisition or construction of these ilems. Subsequent costs are included in the assel's camyng amount only when it is
probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the ilem will flow 10 the Group and the costs can be measured relisbly. All other costs,
including repairs and maintenance cosls, are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation (s provided on all property, plant and equipment, including those held under finance leases, at rates calculated 10 write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment less their estimated residuat value over their expected useful ives on the following bases:

Leasehold mprovements - over the lease period
Fixturas, fittings 8 equipment - five years to ten years
Compuler hardware - four years to five years
Moator vehicles - four years to five years

The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed and, i appropriate, adjusted at each balance sheet date.
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The gain or loss arising on disposal or scrapping of an asset is recogrised in the income stalement.
{g} Insurance intermediary assets and liahilitles

Insurance brokers act as agents in placing the insurable risks of their clients with insurers and as such, generally, are not lable as principals for
the amounts arising from such transactions. Accordingly, receivables arising from insurance broking transactons are not included as assels of
the Group. Other than the receivable lor fees and commissions eamed on the transaclion which is recognised within trade receivables, no
recognition of the insurance transaction occurs untl the Group receives cash in respect of premiums or claims, at which lime a comresponding
tiability is established in favour of the insurer or the client and recognised on the Consolidated Statemeni of Financial Positon as nsurance
payables.

Fiduciary cash arising from insurance broking ransactions is included within tnsurance cash. The Group is entitled to retain the investment
income on any cash flows ansing from insurance related transactions and is recorded in "olber gperaling income®,

{r} Dividend distribution
Equily dividends declared at the discretion of the Company are recognised in the period in which they are declared and approved by the Board.
(s) Non-recurring lems

Non-recurring ltems are separalely idenlified 10 provide greater understanding of the Group's underlying performance. ltems classified as non-
recuming items include: clesure costs for businesses, restructuring costs, acquisition costs, post acquisition infegralion costs, write-offs and other
credils and charges of a non-recurring nature that require separate identification in order to provide additional insight into the underlying business
pesformance. To assist in the analysis and understanding of the underlying trading pasition of the Group, these items are summarised in note 4.

{t) Acquisltion costs

Acquisition relaled costs are costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. These inciude mainly tegal fees, finder's fees, valualion
costs and other professional or consulting fees, which are expensed in the period they are incurred

Other acquisition costs incurmed which are directly atiributable to obtaining finance in order ta fund the acquisition are not expensed but included
within the debt balance. The cosls are then amorised (according to the effective inlerest rale method) through the Consolidated Income
Statement aver the period of 1he debt.

{u) Taxatlon

Current tax is the expecled tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacled at the
balance sheet date, and any adjusiments to tax payable in respect of previous years. Income tax is recognised in the Consolidaled Income
Staternent except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprenensive Income or directly in equity. in this case, tha tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive incoms or direclly in equily respectively.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cammying amounts in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Pasition on a full provision basis. Deferred lax assets are only recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable
against future taxable profits. Daferved tax balances are not discounted. Deferred tax is determined using the tax rates that have been enacted or

substantvely enacted by the balance sheet dale, and are expecled to apply when the deferred tax liabifity is settled or the deferred tax assel is
reafised.

{v} Treasury shares

Treasury shares ara deducled from equity. No gain or loss is recognised on the purchase, sale, issue o cancellation of the treasury shases. Any
consideration pald or received is recognised directly in equity.

(w) Share premium
The share premium accoun! is the difference between the nominal value of shares issued and the valug of the consideration received. The use of

the share premium account is govemnead by the Companies Act 2006.
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{x} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbkgation {legal or construclive) as a resull of a past event, il is probable that the Group
will be required 1o seltie that obligation and a reliable estimale can be made of ihe amount of the obligatron.

The amount recognised as a provision is the besl estimate of the consideration required ta seltle the present abligation al the balance sheel date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the oblgation.

2 Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

The Dwectors make a numnber of estimates and assumptions regarding the future, and make significant judgements in applying the Group's
accounting palicies. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant gffect on the carrying amounts of assets and abilties are:

{a) Fair value on acquisition

dentifiable assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in business combinations. Judgement is exertised in determining what adjustments
arg made 1o the book value of assets and liabilities acquired to measure them at fair value. This typically arises over valuing intangible assets and
provisions, where assumptions and estimates are made about future cash flows and appropriate discount rales 16 determine lalr value.

{b} Impalrment of assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other assels that have indefinite vseful lives suffered any impairment. Other assels are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in cifcumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds ils recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an assetl or a cash-generating unil is the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell, inpuls in the
value-in-use calculation includes future revenue growth, operating margin, fong term growth rates and discount rate. These assumplions require
significant judgement and are based on historical experience, curent markel conditions, market intelligence and knawn optimisation initiatives,
Fair value less costs o sell is based on a mulliple of adjusted EBITDA based recent lransactions observed in the market place. Sensitivity
analysis is performed by adjusling the key Inputs for the value-in-use calcutation and assessing input.

{c] Contingent consideration and put options on non-controlling Interests

The value of contingent consideration payable and put oplions on non-controlling interests is contingent upon the results of the acquired
businesses and any oiher specified performance criteria set out in the applicable sale and purchase agreemenis. Budgels and projections for
acquired businessas for redavant future periods are reviewed gach year,

{d) Revenue recognition

Tumover includes commission and fees receivable at the later of policy inception date or when the policy pfacement has been completed and
conlirmed. Where risk inception is dependent on an event accuning oulside the conlrol of the Group, iudgement [ exercised as to the whathaer
the outcome is highly probabie or not based on consideration of specific risks 10 the coniracls and prior experience on similar contracts, Whera
there is a risk of canceliation or retum of commissions on Inception/placement of the palicy, judgement ¢ axercised in the best estimats of
probablity of cancellation or retum based on prior experience, To the extent that the Group Is contraciually obliged to provide sendces aller this
dale, an appropriate propadtion of incoma is deferred and recognised aver the life of the relevant contracts to ensure that revenue appropriately
reflects the fair value of fulfilment of these obligations, Profit commission and other conlingent fee arrangements are recognised over the life of the
relavant arrangement of when they can be measured with reasonable cortalnty.

{e} Provisions
©On recognilion of provisions, management’s best eslimales are made over the liming and amounts of cash fows to sattle the obligation.
{6) Liguidity put option labllity

in the prior year lhe fair value of the fiquidity put option liabilty is based on ranagement's best estimate over number of Hyperion “A” shares
subyect to the put and Hyperion "A” shara price on maturity in 2017, Significant judgement is axarcised in forecasting the changes in the inputs
based on known facts as at balanca sheel date. See note 19 for further detaifs on the liquidity put aption liab'lity
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3 Segmental analysis

{a) Operating segments

IFRS 8 "Operaling Segments” requires operaling segments ta be delermined based on the Group’s inlernal reporting to the Chiel Cperating
Decision Maker ("CODM") The CODM is the Board of Direclors, as itis this body which is primariiy responsibls for the alfocation of resources lo
segments and the assessment of performance of the segments. Managemenl has determined the operating segments based on the reporls
reviawed by the Board of Direclors The Board of Dwectors considers the business principally from a prowision of service lines {being the provision
of broking and underwriting services). and the broking service kne on a geographical basis between UK and Intemnalional.

The Board of Directors uses revenue and EBITDA, as rewewed on a monthly basis, as the key measure of the segments’ resulls as it reflects the
segments' underlying rading performance for the period under evaluation.

The Board of Directors dees not review assets and liabifities by segment and onty on a group consolidated basis.

Gn 1 October 2016, the Group changed its organisational structure to comprise three operaing structure — RKH, Howden Group and DUAL.
RKH comprises of Specialty and Reinsurance breking operations, Howden Group compnises of UK retall and Infermational broking operations and
DUAL comprises of underwriling operatiens. The Group has restated the comparative information to reflect tha change in operating segments and
olher movements in operations between segments.

The divisional analysis has been provided for conlinuing operations only.

Howden Slatutory ContirI:(i,lt-z

RKH Group OUAL.  Head Office Subtolal adusiments  Operations

Year to 30 September 2017 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Fees and comwnission 208,577 214,841 98,602 - 523,020 9,289 532,309
Other operating incorme 5,780 2720 850 - 8,350 - 9,350
Other operating costs {133.663) {164,691) {79.772) (3.905} {382,601) {18.653) {400,684)
EBITDA 81,694 52,870 19,680 (3.905) 150,338 {9,364) 140,975
Depreciation and amortisation {41,198}
Finance income 683
Finance cosls {45,663)
Fair value adjustmenis {4,052}
Nor-recurring costs {75,113}
Acquisition costs {1,331)
Loss before taxation {25,699}
Taxation {17.136)
Loss afier taxation {42,835}
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The divisional analysis has been provided for conlinuing operabions only,
Total Conttinuing
Year to 30 Septembar 2016 (restated) RKH  Howden Group DUAL Head Office Operafions
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Fees and commission 165,540 173,506 84,886 - 423,932
Other operating income 3,730 251 1,027 2,618 9,947
Other operaling costs {112,117 {141,543 {71,963} {5,018) {330,641)
EBITDA 57,153 34,534 13.950 {2.399) 103,238
Depreciation and amortisation (37,947)
Finance incorme 1,934
Finance cosls {32,177)
Fair value adjustiments 11,370
Non-recurnng costs (81,116}
Acquisition costs (750)
Loss before taxation {35,248)
Taxation {5,209)
Loss after taxation (41,357)
(b} Geographlical sagment analysis
No single customer contnbuted 10% or more 1o the Group's revenue in either 2017 or 2016.
Faes and commlasions 07 2016
E'000 £'000
Americas 149,871 157,169
UK 117,616 71,347
Northern Europe 113,298 73.416
Far East 47126 31,187
Middle East 32,589 18,680
Aystralasia 30,568 19,519
Southem Eurcpe 27,374 44,235
Eastem Europe 10,548 6070
Africa 3,339 1,269
532,309 423932
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4 Operating profit
Operating profit lor the year 15 stated after charging/(crediting):
2017 206
£'000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,780 6,016
Amortisation of inlangitle assets 36,418 31,931
41,198 37,947
Professional fees in relation 1o the Group's auditor
Audit services
- statutory audit of the Company 229 M
- statutory audi of subsidiaries 1,341 @91
- audit-related regulatory supplementary reporting 151 174
All other services
- faxation sefvices 502 379
- professional feas asscciated with olher advisory sernvices 419 .
Operating lease rentals:
- land and buildings 13,308 11,452
- equipthent 72 1,087
Forelgn exchange lossi{gain) 2,495 (8,338)
MNon-recurring items recognised in the income statemnent
2017 2018
£'000 £D00
Post-acquisition integration costs 1,819 3842
Closure of business units . 1.493
Recycling from hedge termination 4,069 1,544
Other restruciuring costs 2,868 B4
Costs of fundamentat restructuring 8,756 7,720
Goodwill impairment 1,941 -
Other expenses non-recurring in nature 92 261
(Gain)loss on sale of subsidiarias and other non-current assets 1,169 {2.405)
Global transformation proect 1,196 -
Employese services post-business combination 61,959 75,540
Other non-recurring administrative ¢xpenses 65,157 73.396
Total nonrecurring items 75,113 81,116
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4 Oparating profit toMinued

Post-acquisition inlegration costs relale to redundancy costs, relention awards, re-organisation costs and costs associaled with onerous contracts
foifowing the a business combination.

Clesure of business unils relales to the cosls of closing down exisling busmess unils

Recycling from hedge terminalion relales to the recycling from the cash flow hedge reserve when the forecast transaction occurs for lermmated
cash flow hedges, previously used (o hedga foreign sxchanpe risk,

Other restructunng relate ta vadous restructures within the Graup. Casts include redundancy, onerous contracts and re-arganisation.
Goodwill impalrment redate to impairment charges incurred from the goodwall impairmenl review (see note 9)

Other expenses non-recurring in nature relale to Group led profectls such as legal enlity rationalisation and other Group-wide transformation
projecls

(Gan)loss on sale of subsidiaries and other non-current assels arise from the disposal of subsidiaries, books of businesses or PPE (o third
parties.

Employee services post-business combination relate te tha continuing provision of senvices rendered by employees in order to eam defered
consideration or gain the ful benefil of Hyperion shares issued as consideration in a business combination {see ncte 24). In the year ended 30
Seplember 2017, the charge of £61,959,000 (2016: £75,540,000) primarily related to employees who joined the Group following the acquisition of
RKH in April 2015 (2017; £57.616.000, 2016: £74,752,000). These employees were in aggregale entitled to cash payments of £56,719,000 in two
equal instaiments in April 2016 and Aprit 2017, and to £130,963,000 treated as an equily setiled share based payment trom the period April 2015
to April 2018, These amounis are axpensed lo the Consolidated Income Statement over the relevant servica period as non-racurring cosls,
subject o Jeaver provisions, The residual balanca relates to Hyperion shares fssued as part of various transactions (see note 24), which have
similar senvice condilions and are expensed over a three year period.

The cash net of outflow in Telalion to non-recuning ilems in the year end 30 September 2017 was £23,819,000 (2046 £9,700,000).
Acquisition costs

Acquisition cosis in the period are in relation to the acquisition of Sterling Knight and Barge. Acquisition costs are primatily professional fees and
other incremental costs directly attributable 1o effecting the acquisition.

2007 2016

£'0e0 £000
Eurcassekuranz Versicherungamakier AG - 269
Other acquisition costs 354 97
PMG Financial Services Limited - 77
Sterling Knight 36 -
Howden Drive 28 .
Acquisition costs a8 443
Acquisition cosls paid in raspect of prior year acquisitions 913 g7
Totat acguisition costs 1,331 750
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5 Finance costs and income
2017 2018
(restated)
Interest expense £300 £000
Qiher fvan interest {2,525) (619)
Obkgatory dividends ta non-conlrolling interest (653) {1.065)
Term Loan finance costs {37.200) {30,284)
Finance leases (94) {97)
Shareholder loan interest (351) (530)
Shareholder ioan nole interest (226) (543)
Amortisation of bank and loan amangemen {ees {4,101) 13,362)
Foreign currency gains on financing monetary items 2,087 4,323
Changes in {air value of financing derivatives {2,596) -
Total interest expense (45.663) (32177)
Bapk and other interes! recelved 683 825
Changes in fair value of financing dertvatives - 1,109
Total interest income 683 1,834
Deferred and contingent consideration (3.344} (6,890)
Pul options and eam-outs on non-conlrolling interests {17.619) (6,613)
Derivatives {1,339} (1,032)
Liquidity put option 18,250 25,885
Change In the fair value through profit or loss {4,052} 11,370
See note 18 for mare detaits on the tiquidity put oplion,
6 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees, including directors, employed by the Group dusing the years was
2017 2016
Number Number
Directors and senior management 267 248
Insurance profassionals 2,233 2,012
Adntinistration 1,284 1,327
3,794 3,587
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The aggregaie payroll costs of the above employees, inciuding direciors, were as follows.
2017 2016
£000 E£'000
Wages and saianes 257,295 222178
Social security cosls 19,729 16,480
Pension contribution 10,596 9,565
Share based payment 2,620 2425
260,240 251 059
Diractors’ remuneration
2017 2016
£000 £'000
Aggregate emcluments 3,487 2,942
Aggregate share-based payments 144 114
Aggregate pension contributions 1w 209
3641 3.265
Highast paid director
Salary and benefils 1,599 1,298
Pension contributions - 112
1,599 1.410
Number Number
Number of directors at 30 Septemnber 7 7

During the year ended 30 September 2017, no Direclors left the Group. Therefore there was a £nil charge in respect of compensation for loss of

atfice {2016: £nil).

7 Taxation
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Tax expense comprises:
Corporation tax on profits for the year 24,215 12,232
Adjustment in respect of prior period {1,322) {1,626)
Total current tax 22,953 10606
Deferred tax
QOriginating and reversing lemporary differences (8,490) {5.857)
Change in lax rates 7 4.010)
Adjustment in respect of prior period 2,666 5,170
Total deferred tax (note 23) (5.817) {4.697)
Total tax on ordinary activities 17,138 5909
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The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
2047 2016
{restated)
£'000 £000
Loss on ordinary aclivities before tax {25,699) {35.448)
Loss on ordinary actwlies multiphed by the statutory rate of corporation tax in the UK of 18 5% (2016:
20 0%} {5,014} (7,090)
Tax sf{ect of:
Impact of differently taxed profils in overseas locations 3,847 .
Expenses not deducuble for taxation purposes 16,710 15,683
Non-taxabla income - (5.406)
Deferred tax rate change {9) (4.010)
Unrecognised deferred tax assels on losses 1,435 -
Adjustments in respecl of prior periods 1,343 3.544
Tax losses utilsed during the year (746} (2.286)
impact of associates profits (280} -
Tax ansing on inira group disposals 2141 -
Other ilems {2,294) -
Deferred lax on intangible fixed assets - 5474
Total tax expense recognised in income statement 17,136 5.909

The Group's fulure tax charge will depend on the geographic mix of profits eamed and the lax rates in force i1 the jurisdictions in which the group
operates. Further changes teo the UK corporation tax rate were substantively enacled in the Finance Act 2016. These include reductions in the

main rate to 19% from Aprié 2017 and {0 17% from April 2020.

The tax effect refaling o components of other comprehensive income was a tax charge of £2,465,000 (2016: tax credit of £1,198,000) relating 1o

cash flow hedges.

8 Dividends

The Group has paid inlefim dividends in the year of £nil (2016 £nil). The Group has not declared any further divdends during tha yaar ended 30

September 2017 (2016.£niY),
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9 Goodwill
Positive tmpairment
Goodwill Losses Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Opening net book value as at 1 October 2016 340,777 (24,044) 316,733
Acguisitions (5ee nole 34) 5,812 - 5812
Changes refating to impairments - (1,841) (1,941}
Mavements due to loreign currency transtation {2,529) 854 (1,675)
Closing net book value as at 30 September 2017 344 060 125.131) 318,329
Opening net book valus as at 1 October 2015 305,726 (25,704) 280,022
Acquisilions (see note 34} 14,991 - 14,991
Changes ralating to prior year acquisitions {1,116} - (t.118)
Movernents due Lo foreign currency transiation 21,176 1,660 22,836
Closing net book value as at 30 September 2016 340,777 {24,044) 316,733

Goodwill is allocated lo either individual cash generaling units (CGUs), or groups of cash generating units (together "GCGU"), where the benefits
of the synergies of the business combination in which the goodwill arises is axpected to occur. Management have concluded that for the purpose
of impairment {esting of goadwill, the CGLs are the indivdual egal enlities, which conduct the business aperations.

An analysis of the net book value of goodwill by CGL or GCGU for Impairment testing

2017 2018
{restated)
£'000 £000
RKH 127,301 127,566
DUAL Commercial 47,492 49,282
Howden Sicherheit Intemational 35,972 35,492
UK Retall 19,022 19,062
Howden Israsl 12,985 12,887
Eurcassekuranz 11,365 11,223
Howden Genmany 11,105 10,967
Hawden Finland 7,615 7.520
DUAL UK 74068 7,393
DUAL Australia 5,576 5617
Harmonia 5,088 5,114
Sterling Knight 4,622 -
Howtlen Iberia 4,475 3.214
CiMB 3,965 4213
Wacolda aaa 3574
DUAL Deutschland 3173 3,149
Conoria 2,34 2,308
Other 7,993 8,149
Yotal 320,870 316,733
| t charge in the (1.941) ~
Total goodwill 318,029 318,733
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Due lo reorganisation of the Group’s reporting structure during the year ended 30 Seplember 2017, this has changed the compesition of certain
CGUs 1o whach goodwill has been allocated. The comparative has been reslated as appropnate,

Annual Impairment review

The anaua impaimen! review of goodwill 1s based on an assessment of each GCGU or CGU's recaverable which is the hugher of value in use or
fair value less costs o sell. Value in use Is calculated from cash flow projeclions based on the medium-lerm business plan which have been
approved by management covenng a three-year pertod. Thase projections excluda any eslimated future cash flows expected lo anse from
restruciunng not yet committed lo. Fair value less costs lo sell is based on a multiple of EBITDA based on recent transaclions observed i the
market place.

The value m use calculation 15 based on the following kay assumplions used in the cash fow projeclions.
«  Future revenue growth based on histoncal experience and market inlelligence
« Operating margin based on historical experience and known cost optimisation initiatives

Cash flows beyond ihe three-year period are extrapolated by using an estimated long-term growth rates stated below The long-term growth rates
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the countries in which the GCGU or CGU operates in. Management has assessed the appropriate
discount rate for each indindual GCGU and CGU. This has been assessed using a weighled average cost of capital for comparable companies
and adjusted for risks specific to each GCGU and CGU.

CGU/GCGUs 2017 long-term 2016 long-term 2017 pra-tax 2016 pre-tax

growth rate growth rate discount rate discount rate
RKH 2% 2% 12% 14%
DUAL Commercial 2% 2% 16% 18%
Howden Sicherheit international 1% 1% 14% 15%
UK Retall 2% 2% 12% 14%
Eurcassekuranz 1% 1% 14% 15%
Howden Germany 1% 1% 15% 16%
Howden Israel 3% % 15% 16%
Howden Finland % 2% 14% 15%
DUAL UK 2% 2% 12% 14%
DUAL Australla % 3% 5% 16%
Howden |beria 2% 2% 17% 18%
CiMB 5% 5% 16% 17%
Sterding Knight 3-5% - 13-16% -
Wacolda 4% 4% 19% 18%
DUAL Deutschiand 1% 1% 15% 16%
Harmonia 2% % 22% 24%
Donoria 3% 4% 14% 15%
Other 1-6% 1-6% 11-17% 12-20%

Impairment review

Following the Group's annual imparment review, it was identified that Howden Corretora (Harmoria) (acquired in November 2014) was identified
as an impaired CGU, It was tested if the recoverable value would be suppored by 8x EBITDA as a basis for fair value less cosis lo sell, and the
result slill showed that the CGU was impaired. Given that the subgroup was below its budgeted EBITDA in FY2017, management have impaired
tha goodwill relating to Harmonia by £1 9m, after adjusting for NCI.

In Ihe prior year, no CGU/GCGUs were dentified as having a goodwill Impairment.

iz
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Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis was pesformed whereby certain key assumptions were subjected to reasonable changes, whilst other assumplions were held
contstant. The sensitivity is as per below:

« Sensiliwty one: Reduction of revenue growth rate by 10% and 25% of revenue reduction results in cash saved

«  Sensitivity two: Reduclon of the long term growth rate by 50%

=  Applying sensitiviies one and two simultaneously

The table below summarises the reduction in value in use which would arise in the sensilised Scenanos, and resull in an impairment charge
both sensilivities were applied simulaneously. There were no impaiments arising for ather CGUSIGCGUs in the sensltised scenanos, While the
sensilised scenanios indicated Howden Germany and Donoria CGUSs to have an impairment, management do nol consider these CGUs to be
impaired based on the results of the base scenanp, the likelihood of the sensitised scenaros to occur and the mitigating aclions open to
managemnent such as further reduction in discretionary costs and other cost optimisation actions.

CGU/GCGUs Sensitivity one Sensltivity two Apply both impairment
sansitivities
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Harmonia 2,447 495 2,800 4,041
Howden Germany 5,798 1,089 6,603 338
Donoria 2,856 813 3,336 1,056

In the prior year, similar sensilivity analysis was applied, the lable below summarises the reduction in value in use which would arise in the
sensilised scenarios, and the mpairmend charge if both sensitivities were applied simultaneously:

CGU/GCGUs Sensitivity ona Sensitivity two Apply both Impalrment
sansitivities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £900
DUAL Commercial 14,872 6,212 19,729 4,960
Harmonia 2,190 713 2,754 1.175
Howden Germany 4,854 8239 5361 345
Donoria 22 749 2658 1,317

A reduction in EBITDA mullple to 7.5x would not result in an impairment of Howden Sicherheit International.
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10 Intangible assets
Customer
Patents & relationships &
software brands GCther Total
£'000 £'000 E'000 £'008
Opening nat book value 1 October 2016 [as previously stated) 26,693 238615 1818 267,126
Reclassification {10,658) 9.454 1,204 -
Opening nat book value 1 October 2016 (as restated) 16,035 248,069 3.022 267.126
Adkiitions 10,262 48 214 10,524
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (see note 34} - 6877 - 6,877
Disposals (154) . {3 {157)
Reclassliiications (143) - (194} {337)
Exchange differences 11 17 {13} 15
Amorlisation (4,466} (31,132) {820} {36.418)
Closing net book valie as at 30 September 2017 21,545 223879 2,206 247,630
Cosls 32,108 305 444 5,686 343,238
Accumutated amortisation {10,564) {81,566} (3.478) {95,608}
Closing net book value as at 30 Ssptember 2017 21,544 223,878 2208 247,630
Opening net book value 1 Oclober 2015 (as previously slated) 15,237 226,383 2,990 244 610
Reclassification (10,515) 9,103 1,412 .
Opening net book value 1 October 2015 (as restated) 4,722 235,486 4,402 244 610
Additions 10,448 393 ral 10,913
Acquisitions of a subsidiary 1,183 26,304 - 27487
Disposals {(703) {698) (377) (3.778)
Redlassifications 4274 - . 4,274
Exchange differences 208 10,549 127 10,884
Amortisation {4,098) (26,633) {1,200) (31,931)
Changes in redation Lo prior year acquisitions - 2667 - 2,667
Closing net book value as at 30 Seplember 2016 16,035 248.068 3,023 267 126
Casls (as restated) 20,651 300,731 6,004 327,386
Accumulated amorfisation {as restated) {4.616) (52,663} (2,981) {60,260)
Closing net book value as at 30 September 2016 (as resiated) 16,035 248,068 3023 267,126

Brands anising on acquisitions were previously reported within “Patents & software™ but now reporied within “Customer refationships & brands™,
The rectassification better represents tha nature of the assels as customer relationships and brands are the maledal intangible assels which arlse
on acquisition under business combination accounting.

The research and development expenditure recognised as an expense during the year was £171,000 {2016 £40.000). The amoum capitaksed
during the period was £7,565,000 {2016: £5,533,000).

9
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11_Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures, fittings Leasehold

& equipment  Maltor vahicles  improverments Total
30 September 2017 £000 E'000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Oclober 2016 19,159 1,263 9,506 29,928
Additions 2427 210 959 3,596
Additions through business combinations 9 ar - 46
Disposals {2,462) {185) {196) {2.843)
Reallocations from intangibles 412 - 15 427
Foreign exchange movements {51} (17) (82) {150
Balance at 30 September 2017 19,494 4,308 10,202 31,004
Depreclation and impairment losses
Al 1 October 2016 (10,552} (481) {5,580) (16,613)
Disposals 1,959 133 89 2,181
Reaflocations from intangibles (75) . (15) (80)
Degpreciation (3,307) (250) (1,143) {4,780}
Foreign exchange movements 48 10 61 119
Balance at 30 September 2017 (12,007} (588} {6,588) (19,183)
Carrying amount
At 1 Oclober 2016 8,607 782 3,926 13,315
At 30 Septemnber 2017 7,487 720 3614 11,821
30 September 2016
Cost
At 1 Oclober 2015 27,473 1,108 8,389 35,971
Additions 3,260 384 1,037 4,681
Additions through business combinations 444 96 - 540
Disposals (3z21) (395) (440} (1,156)
Realfocations 1o intangibles (13,399} - - {13,399)
Foreign curtency adjustment 1,702 69 520 2,291
Balance at 30 September 2016 19,159 1.263 9,506 29,928
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 Oclober 2015 {15,360) {394) {3,807 (19,561)
Disposals 317 244 388 945
Reallocalions to intangibles 9,125 - . 9,125
Depreciation {3,748) (310) (1.853) {6.016)
Foreign axchange movements {B86) (21) {203) {1,110)
Balance al 30 Selember 2016 {10,552} (481) (5,580} {16,613)
Carmrying amount
At 1 October 2016 12,113 715 4,582 17,410

8,607 782 3,926 13.315

At 30 Seplember 2016

At 30 September 2017 tha net book value of tangible fixed assets hekd under finance leases was £1,202,000 (2016: £1,247,000).
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12 Investments held at cost

2017 206
£'000 £0oe
Investment at beginning of year 1,184 1.052
Foreign exchange movements 2 132
Net Investment 1,186 1,184

The Group does not exert any influence on the financial and operaling policies of these investments.

The Group tonlinues to hold its investments in Howden Korea Limited (39.9%), Scassurancen Danmark A/S {20%). MY Marine Risks (24%),

Charterama B.V (37.5%) and Precison NFP Limited (19.9%).

13 Investments in assaclates and Joint ventures

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Invesiment in asscciates at the beginning of the year 23 -
Acquisitions - 23
Hel investrient in assoclate 3 2%
Investment i and jaint ventures at the beginning of the year - -
Acquisitions 485 -
Net Investment In joint ventures 485 -
Net Investments in associste and joint ventures 508 23

During the year, the Group acquired 52% of New Generation Insurance Services LLC ("NGIS"} {renamed Howden Insurance Brokers LLC on 20

August 2017), which is treated as a joint venture.

The Group continues to hold its investment in Kanceleria Brokerska Modemn Brokers Spoka Akcyjna ("Kanceleria®) and is treated as an associate,

The Group has nat included the results of Kanceleria and NGIS in these accounts as the amourts are deemed immaterial.

41



14 Trade and other receivables

HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended Septembaer 30, 2017

"

HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP

2017 - 2016

Current £000 £000
Insurance receivable 113,135 125,304
Qther deblors 316,122 32487
Prepayments 14,102 10,027
Corporation 1ax recoverable 1,609 18,585
164,968 186.403

2017 2016

Non-current £'000 £'000
Other deblors 730 2,040
730 2,040

Total trade and other recelvables 165,698 168,443

15 Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

£000 E'000

Cash at bank and in hand - sterling 134,839 170,358
Cash al bank and in hand - olher currencies 493,562 383,765

Bank overdrafis {1,6386) (1,359)
626,765 552,704

2017 2016

£'000 £000

Insurance cash and cash equivalents 494,153 475,070
Own funds 132,612 71,724
626,765 552,794

The Group holds short-term depasits that are made (or varying periods, depending on the cash requirements of the Group. These deposits earn
interest at market short-term deposit rates. The Group has unrestricted accass o these deposits which meet the definition of a cash equivalent.

Fiduciary balances comprise client and insurer monies and fees and commissions eamed but undrawn at the halance sheel date. These ars held
in nsurance trust fund bank accounts for the benefit of cllents and insurers.

A portion of the Group's cash balance is not avaitable for use due to legal and creditor restrictions. At 30 September 2017 the Group's resincled
cash balance was £4.4m {2016 £22.9m). The decrease from the prior year relates lo restricted cash which could as at prior year end only be

used lo setile deferred consideration,
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16 Trade and other payables less than one year
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Insurance payables (475,444) {473,035)
Trade and other payables (25,724) {30.877)
Deferred consideration {5,580) {61,527
Other {ax and social security {3.965) i6.0%1)
Accruals and defeved income (100,554) {73.695)
(135 821) {172.110)
Total trade and other payables less than one year (641,267) {645.145)
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Corporation lax payable {B,336) (17,340}
17 Yrade and other payables due after more than ane year
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Trade and other payables {8,425 (1,791)
Delerred consideration {10,956) (3,525)
{19,381} (5.316)
18 Borrowings
2017 2016
(restated)
Current £'000 £000
8ank borrowings (2,922) (40,863)
Loans from equity holders - (718)
Finance lease liabiities (351) (800)
Other loans {1,783) {3,653)
{5,056) {46,034)
2017 2016
(restated)
Non-currant £°000 E000
Bank borowings {699,756) (550.161)
Loans from equity holders - (10612)
Finance lease liabides {5482) (1,005)
Other loans (7,063) {5,450}
{707,401) (567,268}
Total borrowings {712.457) (613,302)
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Bank borrawings

In addition to the Group's Term Loan oulstanding as at 30 September 2016, the Group drew down an additional amount of USD 120.0m of Term
Loan in November and December 2016, In May 2017, the Group drew down EUR 150.0m of Term Loan and repaid USD 56.2m of Term Laan.
The carrying value of the Term Loan, net of issuance costs, as at 30 September 2017 was E701.7ia (2016 £551.7m) of which £572 6m (2016:
£551.7m) related lo lhe USD porion and £129.0m (2016. Enil) relaled to the EUR portion,

The USD Tenn Loan bears interest payable monthly or quarlerly al a variable interest rale based on either LIBOR or a base rate plus, in ether
case, an applicable margin. The applicable margin for the USD Tenm Loan is 4.0% (4.5% price to May 2017) with aLIBOR floor of 1.0%. In terms
of scheduled repayments, the USD Term Loan is repayable in equal quarterly instalments at appreximately 1.0% of the original loan principal per
annum with {he remaining balance due at final maturity on 20 April 2022,

The EUR Term Loan bears interes! payable monthéy or quarterly at a variable interest rate based on either EURIBOR or a base rate plus, in either
case, an applicable margin. The applicable margin for the EUR Tem Loan is 4.0% with a EURIBOR floar of 0.0%. In terms of scheduled
repayments, the EUR Term Loan is repayable In equal quarterly instaimenis at approximately 1.0% of the original loan principal per annum with
the remaining balance due at final maturily on 20 April 2022,

Concurrent with the Term Loan, the Group also has £85 Om of Revolving Credit Faclites {"RCF™) maiwing on 20 Apni 2020, The RCF bears
inlerest of LIBOR or a base rate plus, in either case, an applicable margin. The applicable margin for the RCF is 4.25% with a LIBOR floor of
1.0%. The carrying value of the RCF drawn down as al 30 Seplember 2017 was £nil {2016: £38.0m).

The Tern Loan and RCF are secured by cross guarantees and debentures over the Company and a number of subsifiaries.

There are a number of smaller bank faciklies drawn down lotalling £1.0m (2016: £1.3m), of which Enil (2016 Enil} is secuted on tha nel assels of
subsidiaries.

Loans from squity holders

These are loans from current or previous HIG shareholders, or from non-controliing interests and were repaid as at 30 September 2017. In the
prioe year these loans had a weighled average interest rate of 8.0% and a weighled average maturity profile of one year. These loans were nat
secured.

Finance lease liabilities
See note 21 for more details.

Other loans

The Group has loans from Menorah Mivtachim Insurance Limited with a camrying vaiue of £1.1m as at 30 September 2017 (2016: £1.6im). The
loans attract both a fixed component of interes! at 4.7% of 6.2%, and a variable compaonent of interest at CP) + 3 75% malwing between February
2018 and July 2022. The loan s secured by both a local Israeli law security as well as a floating charge over the assets of the borrowing
subsidiary company, Howden General and Marine Insurance Brokers (2011} Limited. Howden Insurance Brokers (2002) Limiled also provided a
local Isradli law secunty over its income fow.

The Group has a number of other loans with local insurers with a carrying value of £7,7m as at 30 September 2017 (2016° £7.5m). These loans
bear interest &t a rate of up to 6.3% (2016 6.0%) and a maturity profile up to December 2023, At 30 September 2017 they have a weighted
average rate of 3.0% and a weighled average life of 3 8 years,.
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19 Liquidity put optien

2017 2016

£'060 £000
Liquidity put aption (5,105) (23,354)

On 2 July 2012 5,876,900 "A” ordinary shares of £0.01 each ("Windsor consideration shares”) were issued (o shareholders of Windsor Limited as
part of the consideration paid for the Windsor Group acquisition. Under the terms of the acquisition, the Company agreed thal i no IPO or sale of
the Company occurred hefore 27 Seplember 2017, the holders of the Windsor consideration shares would have the right to convert their shares

into loan notes which would be repayable in 2022. This constilutes a put option for the holders of the shares (“fiquidity put option™} The liquidity
put option has a cap on the value of the loan noles which can be issued of £50.0m.

On inception, the Group recognised the maxmum redemplion amount of £50.0m as a liabilily, which has been discounted to present value with a
comesponding entry into the liquidity put option reserve in equity. Subsequently the Group has measured the liquidily pul option liabiity at the
probable redemption amount, discounted to present value, with movements recorded in the Consolidaled Income Statement, On malurily, if the
put option is not exercised, the final redemption amount is crediled direcily to equity against the liquidity put option reserve. Al of the holders of the

Windsor consideration shares have now forfeited the right 1o put the shares back or disposing of their shareholding before the maturity date of 27
September 2017, this has resulted in gain of £18.2m (2016: £25 9m).

There remain some sharehalders who have waived the right to receive loan noles but were granted the nght to put their Hyperion shares back (o

the Company under specific circumstances. Accordingly a fiability of £5.1m has been recorded for this put, of which £2.7m is cument and £2.4m
Is non-current.

The hiquidity put oplion reserve has heen recycled directly iflo retained eamings during the yeas ended 30 September 2017
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20 Provisions
Cnerous ESD
Restructuring Legal contract provisions Olapldations Other Total
£900 £'900 £'000 £'000 £000s £'000s £000
At 1 Ociober 2016 3,104 - 2744 647 3,425 853 10,773
Seltled in the year (3,104) - - (567) - (337) {4,008)
Expensed to the income Statement 1069 - 138 120 930 77 3,034
Al 30 September 2017 1,069 - 2,682 200 4,155 1,293 9799
At 1 Oclober 2015 (restated) 3,699 1,325 1614 512 2,304 - 11,451
Setiled in the year {2,729) {1,975) (2,138) - - - (8,842)
Arising on husiness combinations - 650 - - 303 - 953
Expensed to the income Statement 2,134 - 1.271 135 818 853 521
At 3¢ Seplember 2018 3,104 : 2.744 647 3425 853 10.773
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 E£'000
Current 4,368 7.139
Non-current 5431 3,634
Total 5,799 10,773

Provisions are generally recognised when the Group has a present of consiiuciive obligalion as a resuh of past events, it is more kkely than not
that there will be an outfiow of resources Lo setila that obligation, and the arnount can be ratiably estimaled, As an exceplon to abave, provisions
arising on business combination are recognised when the Group has a present or construclive obligation as a result of past events and the
amount can be refiably eslimated regardless of whether it is probable that there will be an sutflow of rescurces 1o settla that ob¥galion.

The restiucturing provision relate to inlegration acinities post acquisition of RKH, business unit closuras and other Group restructurings. This
relates principally o redundancies and is expected to be utilised within one year.

The lagal provision relates to a case brought agains! one of the acquisiions mada in 2015 arising from histonc past practices, which was settied
during the year ended 30 September 2016.

Dulapidation provisions relate 10 mestoring property sites on lease expiration and are expecied to be uthsed within five years. This was previously
classed under "Other” provision,

Onerous contract provisions relate to property rationalisation post acquisition of RKH, and other onerous leasa provisions and contracts The
onerous contract provisions ace expecied to be utilised between ona and five years.

Other provisions relate langely o employee refated matters, which are expecled to ba utiised within five years.

E&Q provisions relate to claltms made against the Graup of in respect of arors and omissions. A provision has been made in raspect of
outstanding errors and omisslons claims, which is expecied to be ulilised within one year
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21 Finance leases

The Group holds a portion of its property, plani and equipment under finance leases. The Group has oplions to purchase the equipment for a
nominal amount 24 the end of the lease tesms, The Group's obfigations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assels.

Interest rates underlying all obkgations under finance leases are fixed at respectve contract dates ranging from 1% - 6% (2016 2% - 7%) per
annum.

Prasent value of minimum lease

Minimum lsase payments payments
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'00) £'000 £'000
Not later than one year (457) (896) {351) (800)
Lalgr than one year and not later than live years (726) {1,087} {583) (988}
Later than five years . - - -
(1,183} (1,993} {934) {1.788)
Less future finance charges 245 205 - -
Present value of minimum lease repayments {934) (1.788) 1934) {1.788)
22 Financial instruments
Categories of financlal assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position relate 1o lhe following categories of assets and liabilties:
Loans and
recelvables /
other Fair value
financial through Camryling
liabifities  profit or loss value Falr value
3¢ September 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other receivables 165,698 - 165,698 1658692
Cash and cash equivalents (including overdraft) 132,612 - 112,612 132,612
Trade and other payables {155,204) - (155,204) (155,204)
Corporation tax kabilites {8,336) - {8,336) 18,336)
Short-term borrowings {5,056) - {5,056) (9.523)
Long-term bomowings {707,401} - (707,401) {731,151)
Darivative financial instruments
interest rale swaps . {5.719) {5.719) {5.719)
Future payments to minorily interests due in less than one year - (24,917) {24.917) {24,917)
Future payments to minority interests due in more than one year - (28,165) (28,1685) {28,165)
Liquidity put oplion - {5.105) (5,105) {5,105}
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Loans and
receivables / Fair value
other financial  through profit

{iabilities orloss  Carrying value Fair vaive

30 September 2016 (restated) £000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Trade and other receivables 188,443 - 188,443 188,443
Cash and cash equivalents {including averdrafl) 77,724 . 77,724 77,724
Trade and other payahles {177,426) - {1T7.426) {177.426)
Corporation {ax kabiities (17.340) - (17,340) (17.340)
Short-term borrowings (46,034) - {46,034) {49,069)
Long-term borrowings {567,268) - {567,268) {670,438}

Defivative financial instraments

Interest rate swaps - {17,187) {17,187) (17,187)
Forward {oreign curtency conbracts - {3571} (3,571) {8571
Future payments to minority interests due in less than one year - (23.223) (23,223) (23.223)
Future payments to minorily interests due in more than one year - {41,422} (41,422) {41.422)
Liquidity put option - {23.354} {23,354) (23.354)

Tha carying value of other financial assets and liabilibes approxmale their fair value except for the Term Loan. The fair value of the Term Laan is

derived using a quoted marker rate in an active market (level 1 classification).

Financial llabllity on payments to minority interests and contingent consideration

The fair value of the Group's financial hability on payments to minority interest and contingetit consideration at the year end was  £53,082,600

(2016: £64.643,000).

The future commitments include the earm-out due on recent acquisitions, and the future liabilty on put and call options. The option kability is
carried at fair value and revalued each year with movements going through the income statement. The kabilities as at 30 September ara as follows

2017 2016

£0a0 £000

Howden Germany put oplion - 6,474
Eurcassekuranz pul & co¥ oplion 17,750 19,018
Chelsea Risk Management put oplion 1,457 1,398
FP Group put option - 32
Howden Forsikringsmegling contingenl consideration - 1,909
Howden Employes Benefits contingent consderation T80 100
Howden Insurance Brokers AB put option 107 136
Howden Iberia put option - 1,077
Howden Finland put option 1,928 2429
DUAL Commercial put option . 7 446
Bar-Ziv conlingent consideration 2,836 3710
Ponoria put option 1,086 825
Howden Sicherheit Inlemational put oplion 7.632 11,750
Harmonia put option 1,978 686
Wacolda pul option 1,664 742
CiIMB put option 6,494 4.240
GRC Turkey put option - 2,255
Howden Insurance Brokers West put oplion 495 133
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Financial ifabllity on payments to minority interests and contingent consideration continuad
2017 2016
£000 £000
DUAL Potska pul option 245 281
DUAL Asset contingent consicleration 234 -
Tamesis contingent congideration 513 -
Sterkng Knight contingent consideration 2,947 -
Howden Singapore contingent consideralion 229 -
Howden MEA put & call oplion 3,280 -
DUAL Perl put & call option 485 -
Berge contingent consideration 295 -
HGMI conlingent cons:wderabon 533 -
Tot derlvative Habliitles and payments 1o minority Interests 53,082 64,643

Financlal Instrumants held at falr value

The disclosure of fair value measurements by level is assessed using the folowing fair value measurement heerarchy

» Quoted prices (unadjusled) in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilties (Lave! 1)

+  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Lavel 1 thal are observable for the assel or liability (Level 2)

= Inputs for the asset or liabilty that are not based on observable market data {Level 3)

The fair value of level 2 instnsments have been determined using forward exchange rates or forward interest rates derived from market sourced

data. with the resulling value discounted back to present value.

The fair value of level 3 instruments have been delermined using the probable cash flow profde using management forecast dala, with the cash

flows discounted back to present value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
30 September 2017 £'000 £000 £'000
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps and caps - (5,719) -
Future paymenls to minority interests - - {53,082}
Liquidity put option - - (5,105}
- {5,719} (58,187)
Level t Level 2 Level 3
30 September 2016 (rastated)} £'000 £000 £'000
Derivalive financial Instruments
Interast rate swaps (17,187) -
Forward foreign currency contracts - (9.571) -
Future payments to minority interests - - {64,643)
Liquidity pul option - - {23,354)
- {26,758) {87,997}
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Retonciliation of movements in Level 3 financial instruments
Financial Habilities Liquidity put

on payments to NCI option Total

£000 £'9000 £000

Balarnce at 1 October 2016 (64.643) (23,354) (87.997)
Gains and losses secognised in Income Stalemeny {20,387} 18,249 {2,138}
Acquisitions (8.450) - (8,450}
Adustiments due to foreign exchange (295) - {295)
Seitled during the year 40,693 - 40,693
Balante at 30 September 2017 {53.082) {5.105) £58,187)

Financral liabihties on Liquidity put

payments to NCI oplion Total

E000 E£000 E£'000

Balance at 1 October 2015 {41,525) {49,239 {90,764)
Gains and losses recognised in Income Siatemment (6.613) 25 885 19,272
Acquisttions {19.969) {19,963}
Adjusiments due to foreign exchange {471) - {411)
Settled during the year 3,935 3,935
Balance at 3¢ September 2016 {64.643) {23.354) (87,997).

Sensitivity analysls on level 3 instruments

Financial liabilties on payments to NCt ase dependent on financial metrics such as revenue growth or future EBITOA. A change of 10% o these
inpuls would result in a liability between £47.8m 1o £58 4m (2016 £58.2m to £71.9m). An increase/dectease 1o the carrying amount of the Kability

on the Consolidated Statement of Financiad Position would have the cesresponding loss/gain on the Consolidated income Statement.

The liquidity put option liability is dependent on shares subject ta put and the share price on maturity. A reasonalde change to these tnputs would
result in a liability between £4.6m to £5 6m as at 30 September 2017, An Increase/decrease to tha camang amaunt of the Lability on the
Consohidated Statement of Financial Position would have the carresponding loss/gain on the Cansolidated Income Slatement.

23 Deferred taxation

2017 2016

£900 £'000
Fixed asset iming differences 1,564 149
Losses camied forward 1" 1,299
Other short-term timing diffecencas 12,291 5,896
Intangible assets (47,888) (52.083)
Nat deferred tax balanca {34,022} (43,355)
Deferred tax asset
Balance at beginning of year B.688 10.027
Deferred tax credit/{debit) in profit and loss account 1.736 {3.293)
Reclassification and othet adjustments 4,203 1,954
Balance at and of year 14,827 6 688
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2017 016
£'000 £7000
Defoerred tax flability
Balance al begwning of year (52,083) {51,386}
Deferred tax credit in profit and loss account 4,081 7.980
Acquisition of subsidiary - (7,301}
Reclassification and olher adjustments (647) (1.386}
Balance at end of year {48,849) {52,083}
Nat deferred tax ilablilty at end of year {34 022) £473,355)
Total delerred tax credit in the income statement {or the period (note 7) 5,817 4,697

The recoverablity of fosses is dependent on there being sufficient future taxable profits. Accordingly no deferred tax has been recognised n
respect of losses not expected to be recovered in the foreseeable future.

The Group has capial iosses of £1,508,000 {2016 £761,000) available to carry forward for cffset against future capital gains. The Group has
unrecognised {rade and non rade losses ofof £16,368,000 (2016: £12,011,561) for offsel against future income, subject to certain restrictions

Factors that may atfect future tax charges

The UK Gavernment has confirmed the intreduction of rules that will mit the deductions that groups can claim for their UK Interest payable from
1 Aprl 2017. Cuirent estimates show thal Interest charges lolalling £4,502,000 will not be allowed as a 1ax deduclion for the year ended 30
September 2017,

The European Commisslon has opened formal investigations to examine whether certain decisions by the lax authorities in Luxembourg comply
with European Union rules on state aid, In addition, the European Commission has opened an Investigation into the UK controlled foreign
company (CFC) rules that provide an exemption for cerdain financing income of multinational groups. Whilst no such investigation has been
opened in respect of either the tax rulings received by Hyperion Euro Growth Sarl and Hyperion Development Sarl or the UK CFC rules, if thay
were to be opened, the Board believes il is more fikely that not that the Group will suffer no additional {axation as a resuli. If the Group were o
suffer additional lax as a resuft of an adverse European Commission investigalion, the total financial Impact of taxation and asscciated interest,
with respect to current and prior periods, would not be more than £4.7m.
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24 Share capital
Allctted and cailed up

Number
2017 ‘000 £000
Classified as equily
A ordinary shares of £0.01 79,632 796
8 ordinary shares of £0.01 1,479 15
C ordmary shares of £0.01 4,281 43
D ordinary shares of £0.00001 35,621 -
£ ordinary shares of £0.60007 1,300 -
128,313 854
Allotted and called up
Number
2016 000 £000
Classified as equity
A ordinary shares of £0.01 79,567 786
8 ordinary shares of £0.01 1479 15
C ordinary shares of £0.01 4281 43
D ordinary shares of £0.00001 21,001 .
E ordinary shares of £0.00001 3,460 -
109,788 854

During the year end 30 September 2017 the foliowing number of shares were issyed 64,968 A shares, 14,619,919 D shares and 3,840,000 E
shares. Ducing the year end 30 September 2017 nil shares were cancelled.

Vating rights

The "A" ordinxy, "8" ordinary and "C" ordinary shares each rank parl passy for voling rights, “D° ordinary and “E” ordinary shares do nol caay
voling rights.

Return on capital
On the sale or liquidation of the Company the proceeds shall be divided between the shareholders as follows

« Firslly, the holders of the "A" ordinary shares will receive the first £2.6004 per share

« Secondly, the haolders of the "A” ordinary and the "B" ordinary shares will each receive Iha sum of £0 4296 per share (£3 0300 - £2 6004)

¢ Thirdly, the balance between £3.03 and £3.60 shafl be distribuled between the holders of the "A” ordinary, “B" ordinary and “C" ordinasy first
issus (C1) shares equally as though thay were one class of share

« Fourthly, the balance between £3.60 and £4.41 shall be distribuled between the holders of the “A* ordinary, "B* ordinary. *C* ordinary first
issue {C1) and "C" ordinary second issus {C2) shares equally as though they wera one class of share

»  Fifthiy, the balance betwean £4.41 and £5.20 shall be dislributed between the holders of tha "A” ardinary, "B" ordinary, “C" ordinary first issua
{C1), “C" ordinary second issue {C2) and "C" ordinary third issue (C3) shares equally as though thay wera one ¢lass of share

= Laslly, the balance over and above £5.20 shall be distributed between the holders of the "A" ordinary, "B ordinary, "C" ordinary firs| issue
(C1), "C" ordinary second issue (C2), “C* ordinary (hrd issue {C3) and "C" ordinary fourth issug {C4) shares equally as though they were one
class of share
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“A" shares are further divided into "A” (2017: 78,076,396, 2016 78,011,428), "A1" {2017 1,037,178, 2016. 1,037,178) and "A2" (2017: 518,591,
2016 516,591). These rank par passu lor refurn on capital when there is sale or liquidation of the Company except as follows:

« | the amount recetved per "A” ordinary share is bess than £11.52, the amount received for each "A1" and "A2" shate is capped at E5 76
+ [f the amount received per “A” ordinary share 15 between than £11.52 and £14.40, the amount received for “A2" share is capped at £5.76
« {i the amount received per "A® ordinary share 15 greater than £14 40, "A™, "A1" and "A2" are treated equally

D" shares ase further divided into further a number of designations. D1-17 (2017, 21,000,867, 2016' 21,000,857) and D18, D20-39 and D41-49
{2017: 14,619,911, 2016. nil}. The different designationss of D shares have the same rights axcept where sel oul below. On sale or liquidation of
(ke Company, “D" shares convert to "A” shares if a hurdla of £7.50 {D1-17) or £8.50 (D18, D20-39 and D41-49) per “A” share is achieved.
Conversion is also dependent on the relalive value of A and D shares and cerlain other performance conditions.

“E” shares are further divided into number of designalions. £3 (2017 3,460.000, 2016. 3,460.000), £2 (2017. 3,190,000, 2016. nil}, E3 (2017:
600,000, 2016 nil) and E4 (2017 50 000, 2016 nil). The different designations of E shares have the same rights except where set out below. On
sale or liguidation of the Company, "E* shares convert 1o "A" shares if a hurdle of £7.50 {E1), £8.50 (E2) or £9.50 (E3 and E4) per A" share Is
achieved. Conversion ks also dependent on the relative value of A and D shares and ather performance conditions.

Dividend rights

The "A” ordinary, "B" ordinary and "C~ ordinary shares of £0.01 each rank pan passu in respect of dividends. "D" ordinary shares do not receive
dividenis. "E" ordinary shares are pal passu with A7, "B7 and "C" ordinary shates subject to aggiegated dwidends for "A7 ordinary shares
exceeding £0.20 per share and the dividend per "E" ordinary share will be a fraclion of the dividend per *A” ordinary share based on relalive value
between A" ordinary and "E* ordinary shares,

Conversion rights

If the sale or liguidation of the Company does pot occur within a cerlain period after issuance date, “D” and *E" ordinary shares convert to “A™
ordinary shares based con certain metrics. The time period to efapse before conversion for “D° ordinary shares varies between 34 months and 58
months depending on designations of "0” ordinary shares. Once the period has elapsed, "D ordinary shares convert to "A” ordinary shares
depending on the performance of certain business units and the growth of “A” share price versus specific targets. The time period 1o elapse
beafore conversion for “E° ordinary shares is five years for all ciasses. Once the period has elapsed, “E” ordinary shares conver to “A° ordinary
shares depending on growth in the "A” shara price versus specific targets.

“D" and “E" ordinary shares which do not convert to *A” ordinary shares are converted to deferred shares, Deferred shares have no voling, retumn
on tapilal or dividend rights.

Shares Issuad as part of business combinations or acquisition of NCI

As part of certain husiness combinations ar acquisition of NCI, A" ordinary shares were issued as consideration with serace conditions attached.
Thege condilions include that for a period of 3 years after acquisition, if a holder of these shares [eaves employment from the Group and 18
deemed a bad leaver then the Group has the opportunity to buy back the "A" ordinary shares at the lower of the fair value or tha price pad by the
shareholders for the original shares, which the “A” ordinary shares relate 10. The price paid by shareholders for the original acquirea shares is
deemed to be the minimum guaranteed raturn for the holders of the "A" ordinary shares. As the holder of tha "A" erd.nary Shares do not receive
full benefit of the shares uniif after 3 ysars, the difference between the fair vatue of the "A” Ordinary shares and the minemum guaranteed refurn
has been lreated as a debit lo the "Acquisition share raserve” on issuance of the shares. Over the 3 years, the difference between the fair value of
the "A" ordinary shares and the minmum guaranieed return is freated as an equity sattied share based compensalion scheme and charged ta
non-recurting costs. To the extent thers is a bad leaver, the cumulative entries into the income statement and equity are reversed, The table below
summaries tha shares issued with the senica condilions attached-

Transaction Yeaar of transaction Fair value of shares / Minimum guaranteed Maximum charge to
£'000 raturn / £'000  income statement ! £'000
RKH 2015 135576 4613 130,963
PMG 2016 41G0 50 4050
Eurcassekuranz 2016 8.603 m 8302
DUAL Commercial 2017 1,416 64 1,352
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For shares issued as pan of the Windsor scquisition in 2012, refer to note 18.
Shares held In treasury

The Company has a number of Employee Benefil Trusts ("EBTs") which holds Hyperion ordinary shares in treasury and o be used to selle
future obligations relating to the Group s share-based compensation plans. As at 30 September 2017, the EBTs colleclively held the following
shares: 127,585 "A" ordinary (2016: 735,372), 86,110 "B" ordinary {2016 32,500), 82,805 "C" ordmary {2046, 264,700), 3,524,660 "D" ordinary
(2016. 87,720) and 970,000 “E" ordinacy (2016. 130,000).

25 Share-based compensation plans

Dusing the year ended 30 September 2017 a lotal charge of £2820,000 {2016 £2425,000) was recognised in respect of share-based
compensation plans. The value of liabilities arising {rom share-based payments as at 30 September 2017 has €5.000 (2016, £133.000). A
summary of the most significant share hased compensation plans are as follows:

Ordinary sharas awarded

During the year 16,933 “A” ordinary shates (2016, 93,130) wera avarded to employees (or nil consideration. Tius resulted in a chacge of £146 000
(2016: £537,000).

Due to the conversion nalure of *D° and “E" ordinary shares into “A” ordinary shares, these have been frealed as equily settied share based
payments. The Group has used the Black-Scholes model {21-17), Barrier Option Black-Scholes model (E1) or Stochaslic model (D18, D20-39,
042-49 and E2-4) ta calculate the fair value of one award on grant date.

Award Grant date Valatility Dividend Intarest Lite ! Share Exarclse Fair
yleald ylald Months pricean  price/E  valueof
grant ane
date / £ award {
£
D117 December 2015 — January 2016 19.7% 0.5% 09% 48 576 7.50 .39
E1 Decembar 2015 — January 2016 21.3% 0.5% 1.2% 60 8.76 7.50 a5
020-22, 27, 4344 February - Apeil 2017 16.6% 06% 9.1% 34 6.39 850 0.14
023-26, 28-30, 33,3537 Fehruary - Apci! 2017 16.6% 0.6% 0.2% 46 639 850 ¢.22
D18 February - Apri! 2017 16.4% 06% 0.3% 58 6.39 8.50 0.28
D32, 42, 45-49 Juna 2017 16.7% 0.6% 0.5% 43 6.39 8.50 021
E2 March 2017 16.6% 0.6% 0.4% 60 629 8.50 0.07
E3 Judy 2017 16.4% 0.6% 0.7% 60 829 9.50 0.44
E4 July 2017 16.4% 06% 0.7% 60 8.29 9.50 047

Tha share price on grant date was eslimated by an edtemal axpert based on a blend of valuation techniques, mnciuding samings multiple based on
listad peer graup and transactional precedents. value in use aad sum of tha componenis parts of the Group. An estimale of futura volatility is
made with referance to historical volatility over a similar lime pericd lo the performance period. Historical volalility is calculated based on the
annualised slandard deviation of listed peer group’s dally share price movemant, being an approsdmation to the coatinuously compounded rate of
retum on the share.

Under the terms of the scheme, early conversion may only ba granied In exceptional circumstances and therefore the effect of aarly exercise has
nat heen incorporated into the calculation. Management have al50 assumed there will nol be sala or { quidation of the Group. iiggering eady
conversion, over tha life the scheme.

"D ordinary shares have hurdies and caps finked to the “A” ordinary shares prior lo realising their potential, and thesae hava been traaled as
effective axercise prices as inputs Inie the valuation models. "E” ordinary shares have hurdies linked to the "A” ordinary sharaes prior lo realising
their potential value and a proportion vest depending on A" ordinary shares schiewing cerdain hurdies, Whera hurdies and cags are sef in a
currency other than sterling, the exchaage rate on granl dale is used when determining modsl inputs. A summary is presented below:
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Award Hurdle; Cap/f Vestinghurdie Vestinghurdlie?2 Vestinghurdte3 Vesting hurdle 4

£ {25% vesting (50% vestiing (75% vesting {100% vesting
unless stated) unless stated) unless stated) unless stated)

DT 750 14.00 nia nfa nia nia

D18, D26-30, D32-33, D35-37. D42-49 B.50 15.00 nfa n/a n/a nia

E1 7.50 nfa £9.00 £10.00 £11.00 £12.00

E2 8.50 na $15.00 $17.00 51800 2100

E3 9.50 nfa $15.00 $16.00 $17.00 {100%) n/a

E4 9.50 nla $15.00 $17.00 31800 $21.00

Assumptlions have been made over performance crieria, pnmarnly leavers and business unit performance. Management have assumed a 20%
leavers” assumption and business unit performance is based upon the approved medium term plan.

A summary of the movement of awards for the year ended 30 Seplember 2017 15 as follows

Award Grant date Falr value Cpticns Granted/ Lapsed Exarcised Options
par option /  outstanding adjustmants ouistanding
£ 1 October 30 Septamber
2016 2017
D1-17 December 2015 — January 2016 0.39 20,370,355 - {234,160) (2,348,242) 17,787,853
Eil Decemnber 2015 - January 2016 0.51 3.460,000 - {270,000) - 3,190,000
D20-22, 27, 43-44 February - April 2017 0.14 - 981,524 - - 981,524
D23-28, 28-30, 33,35-37 February — April 2017 0.22 - 10,135,357  (283,563) {28,183) 9,823,611
Di8 February — April 2017 028 - g3 013 - - 383,013
D32, 42, 45448 June 2017 D21 - 3,120,018 . - 3,120,018
E2 March 2017 0.07 - 3,190,000 - (250,000) 2,940,000
E3 July 2007 D44 - 00,000 - “ 600,000
E4 July 2017 047 - 50,000 . - 50,000
A summary of the movement of awards for the year ended 30 September 2016 is as folkows:
Award Grant date Fair value QOptions Granted/ Lapsed Exercised Options
per oplion/ outsianding 1 adjustments aulstanding
£ October 30 September
2015 2016

D117 Decernber 2015 — January 2016 039 - 21,000,867 {630,512) - 20,370,355
£1 December 2015 - January 2016 0.51 - 3,460,000 - - 3,460,000

A charge of £1,811,000 (2016: £1,244 000) was recorded for the year ended 30 September 2017.

Employee share purchase plan

During the year, employees of one of the subsidiaries of the Group were granted loans with which {0 acquire shares of 1he subsidiary, As the loan
is a non-recourse loan, secured only on the shares of the subsidiary, this is treated as an equity seitied share based payment. The kan is for a
duration of five years and can be repaid at any point in ime at the loan recipient’s discretion. The holder of the shares receive dwvidends during the
life of the lcan but have restrictions whereby the shares cannot be sold for five years. After five years have elapsed, the disposal resirictions are
lifted. Based on this, the shares are treated as fully vested when acquired by the employes and therelore the fair vahue of the oplions is expensed
immediately, The fair value of the option Is determined using a stochaslic model and a summary of the inpuls into the valuation model 2re as

follows-
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Grant data Volatitity Dividend Interest Lire/ Share prica  Exercise Fair value of
yield yiskd Months on grant price t£  one award/
date /£ £
July — September 2017 16.4% % 219% 94.78 120.18 9.08

Assumptions have been made over perfonmance criteria, primarily leavers and business unit performance. Management have assumed 8 20%
leavers’ assumption and business unit performance is based upon the approved medium lerm plan.

While the loan can be refiaid &t any poinl in lime, il has been assuimed that the loan will be repaid afler five years. Therefore the life of the option
has been deemed ta be five years. The exercise price is the total loan poncipal and interest expected to be repaid over tha e of the loem.

None of the awards have lapsed as al 30 September 2017 and the oulstanding life of the award is 4.8 years. A charge of £612,000 was recorded

for the year ended 39 Seplember 2017,

incontive plan

The Group also operated an incentive plan, whereby cerain senior emplayees were granted oplions over *B” ordinary shares. The options were
granted oh 24 December 2014 and have a il of three years. There are no vesting conditions other than the employee’s conlinued empioyment for
the three years. Al the end of the vesting period, the employee can exercise the pplion award for nil consideraion A lotal of 12,500 (2016:
100,000} oplions were held at the start of the period, of which nong (2016: 87,500) were forfeited during the year and 12,500 (2016; 12,500) were
outstanding as al 30 September 2017, An immaterial charge was recorded in both 2016 and 2017.

26 Other reserves

Capital Asset Share Cash flow Minority
redemption revaluation optlon EBT Transtation hedging opticn  Total other
reserve resarve reserve resarve reserve reserve reserve reserves
2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 E'000
As at 1 Oclober 2016 (as
Restatement - - - - {1,808) - - {1,806)
1 Dclober 2018 {restated) 49 2B6 3,399 {6.287) {59.384) {20,464) {70.537) {152,938)
Share based payment - - 2,620 - - - - 2,620
Reserves transfer arising
on utiisation af oplions - - - - - B 28,094 28,094
Net foreigr exchange
adjustments - - - - 24,688 - - 24,688
Arising on acquisilions
and disposals - - - 1,352 - - {4,508) {3,156)
Nel movemnent in shares
held by Employes
Benefit Trust - - - {B57) - - . (B57)
Movement in cash flow
hedge - - - - - 14,739 - 14,739
A3 at 30 Seplamber
217 49 286 6,019 15,792} {34,696) (5,725} {46,951) {86,819)
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Capital Asset Share Cash flow Minority
redemption revaluation opiion £BT Translation hedging option Total other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve ressrve resarve reservas
2016 (reslated) £'C00 £'000 £000 £oco £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
As a! 1 Oclober 2015
(as previously
reported) 18 286 974 (9.185) {2.068) {7,487) {52.218) (69,679)
Restatement - - - - - - - -
As at 1 October 2015
(restated) 19 286 974 {9.185) {2.068) (7.467) (52,218} {69,679)
Share based payment - - 2425 - - - - 2.425
Raserves transfer
arising on utiisation
of ogtions - - . . . - 1,650 1650
Net foreign exchange
adjustments - - - - {57.316) - - {57.316)
Avising on acquisitions
and disposals - - - - - - {19,969) {19,969)
Cancellation of shares 30 . - - - - - 10
Nel movernent in
shares held by
Employee Benefit
Trust - - - 2,898 - - - 2,898
Movernen! in cash low
hedge - - - - - (12,977) - {12,977)
As al 30 September
2016 (restated) 49 286 339 {6.287) {59.384) {20.464) {70,537} {152,938)

Capltal redemption reserve

When share capital is cancelied, a capital redemption reserve is created, equal to the nominal value of the share capital cancelled.
Asset revaluation reserve

This reserve relates to historic revatuation of certain assals.

Share option reserve

This reserve records the transactions in equily for equity-seftled share-based paymentls. For equily-seitled share-based paymenls arising over
business cormbinabons (see note 24), entries are recorded in the “Acquisilion share reserve”.

EBT reserve

This reserve records the transactions In equity for buyback of ordinary shares and consideration received in respect of reissuance of treasury
shares,

Trans!ation reserve

This reserve contains the accumulated forelgh exchange differences arising on franslation of foreign operalions inta the Group's presentational
currency on consolidation
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The Groyp has a number of cash flow hedge amangements (5ee note 28). This reserve compiises the effective pordion of the cumutalive net
change i fair value of cash flow hedging nstruments relaled to hedge transactions whech are forecast and probable, but not yet occurred.

The reserve for minorly oplions includes the intial fair valve of put option hiabiities granted to non-controlling shareholders, and fulure
commitments or polential obligations fo acquire shares 1 subsidianies cumently held by non-contrcfiing shareholders. Subsequent changes n the
fair value of the put option liability are recognised in the income statement. When a put oplion is exercised in full or In part, the element of the
resenve relating (o thus acquisition 1s re-cycled from (he nunority option reserve ttwough (o retained earnings. The amount re-cycled in 2017 was

£28,094 000 (2015 £3687.000).

The movement in the minonly opbon reserve represents the fulure commitments lo purchase minority interests The movement relales to the

acquisition and disposal of the following:

2017 2016
€000 £000
Eurcassekuranz - 18,9305
Cheisea Risk Management - 1.064
Howden Germany 2221 -
Howden Property 2928 -
NAPC 31,687 -
FP Marine 1,623 -
Howden Norway 2,025 -
DUAL Commerical 4,698 -
HBG Asla 1,296 -
Howden Sicherhieit International €072 -
GRC Turkey 1,865 -
HIB West AB 206 -
DUAL Asset 154 (387)
Colemont 1114 {1,263)
Howden Singapore f382) .
HIB West (394) -
Howden M&A (3,247 -
DUAL PERL (485) -
Other 205 {1,263)
23,586 17,056

27 Cash flow adjustments

The cash flows for tha Group are presented for continuing operations only,

Cash acquired on acquisition of subsidiarias is separately shown instead within net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals. Insurance cash
acquired on acquisilion of subsidiaries is shown within insurance cash generated from operating activities, For the year anded 30 September
2017, this was ED 7m {2016: £0.9m). Management considers that this approach privides a clearer view of the underlying cash fiow movements
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The Group's prncipal financial assels are bank balances and cash as well as trade and other receivables. The amounts presented in the
stalement of financial posilion are nel of allowances for doubtful recervables. An allowance lor impairment is made where there is an identified loss
evenl which, based on {fevious experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of cash flows.

The Group has no significan! concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counlerparties and cuslomers

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financia instruments is limited as the counterparties are the Group's bankers with high credit ralings
assigned by intemational credit rating agencies.

Ageing information ol insurance receivables is as sel out betow

More than 3
Not past due 0-3 months manths Total
Al 30 Saptember 2017 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Insurance receivables 85,090 18,813 9,232 113,135
More than 3
Not past due 0-3 months months Total
At 30 September 2016 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Insurance receivables 92,920 19,681 12,703 125,304
Liquldity risk

In order lo maintain liquidily lo ensure that sufficient Junds are available for on-going operations and future developments, the Group uses a
mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual malusity for #s non-derivative financial liabilties with agreed repayment periods. The
table Includes the principal cash flows and inlerest. The contractual maturily is based on the sarliest date on which the Group may be required to

pay.

Less than 1 yaar 1-5 years 5+ years Total
At 30 Seplember 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank bomewings (42,103) {855,251) - (097,354)
Loans from equity holders - - - -
Finance lease liabilties {454) {723) - (1,477}
Other loans (2,082) (6.457) (1,341) (3,880)
{44,639) (862,431} {1,341} {08,411}
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Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years Totat
At 30 Sepltember 2016 E'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank borrawings (75,741} {139,785} {565.710) (781,236)
Loans from equity holders (1.615) {10.623) - {12.238)
Finance lease liabilities (892} {1.105) - (1,997)
Other loans {3,843} {4.456) {1.765} {10.084)
(82.081) (155.999) {567.475) {805,565)

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derfvative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on discounted
net cash flows on derivative instruments. Where the amount payable o receivable Is not fixed, the amount disclosed is the fair value of the

instrument at the balance sheet date.

Less then 1 year 1-5 yaars 5+ years Total
Al 30 Septamber 2017 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Foreign exchange forward conlracts - - . .
Interest rate swaps {1.618) {4.101) . {5,719)
Future payments to NCI (24,917 (27.204) (961) (53,082}
Liquidity put option {2,666) (2,439) - {5,105)
(29,201) (33.744) {961) (63,906)
Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years Total
At 30 September 2016 (restated) £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Foreign exchange forward contracts {9,572) - - {9.572)
Interest rate swaps {2,364) (12,937) {1.,887) (17,188)
Future payments 1o NCA (23.223) (40,024) £1,398) {64,645)
Liquidity put option {23,354) - - (23,354)
{58,513} {52.961) {3,285} {114,758)
tnterest rate sk

The Group's exposure lo iiterest rata risk is on the inlerest payable on the Company’s variabla rate borrowings, inciuding overdrafis, and Interast
receivabie on banking deposils held in the ordinary coursa of business, As a resuit, the Group is subject to a certain degrae of cash flow interest
raie risk due to flucluations in the pravailing levels of market interest rales The Group 15 not subject (o interest rate risk in relation o the fixed rate

borrowings.

The exposure for the Group, st 30 Seplember 2017, of inancial assets and financial liabiities to interest rale risk is shown by reference to:

«  Ficating interast rates (1 e. giving cash flow ierest rate risk) when the interest rate is due to be re-set; and
Fixed interest rates (i e. giving fair value interast rate risk) when the financial instrument is due for repaymaent.
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Fixed rate Floating rate Total
At 30 September 2017 £'000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 134,248 134,248
insurance cash - 494,153 494,153
Total financial assefs . 628,401 628,401
Financlat liabilitias
Cash and cash equivalenis - {1,636) (1,636)
Bank bormowings - {702,678) {702,678)
Loans and fcan notes from redated parties - . -
Finance ieases {933) - 1933}
Other ioans {8,776) (70} {8,846)
Total financlal liabilitles {9,709) (704,384) {714,093)
Fixed rate Floating rate Total
Al 30 Septernber 2016 (restated) £000 £'000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 79,083 79.083
Insurance cash - 475,070 475,070
Totk financial assets - 554,153 554,153
Financial iabfities
Cash and cash equivalents - (1.359) {1.359)
Bank borrowings - (591,024) (591,029)
L.oans ard lcan noles Trom related parties (5,008) {6,322) {11,330)
Finance leases (1,805) - (1,805)
Other loans - {9,143) (9,143)
Total financial iabities (6 813) (607,848) {614.661)

The Group’s largest exposura to ineres! rate risk relales to the Term Loan, where the USD portion has interest payable based on LIBOR and the
EUR portion has interes{ payable based on EURIBOR (see note 18}, While there is a partial natural hadoe with USD and EUR denominated
insurance cash saming floating LIBOR or EURIBOR interest, the Group had entered intg interest rala Swaps and interest rale caps to manage
the interesl rals risk. It is astimated that through the combination of the natural hadge and interast rate derivatives, 95% of tha notional of the Term
Loan is hedged for the remainder of its life as at 30 September 2017 (2016° 59% - 98%).

Tha inlerest rate swaps are used {0 hedge the LIBOR interest rate risk and receive floating, pay fixed, The swaps cover the period to 22 Aprit
2022, covering a nolional between $479.5m and $513.6m dunng its Ife and the fixed legs of the swap pay between 1.5095% to 2.3078%. The
intergst rate caps are used 1o hedge the EURIBOR interest risk and the cap rale is 0.0%.

The interest rate swaps and the intrinsic portion of the Interest rate caps have been designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges on
Inception of the hedging instruments. The swaps and caps are recognised and measured a! fair valug on the Consclidated Statement of Financial
Paosition, with movements on the swaps and intrinsic portion of tha cap recognised in the Consolidated Stalement of Comprehensive Income, as
long as the requirements for hedge accounting are met and are effective. All other movements on the swaps and caps are recognised as a
financing cost in the Consolidated Income Stalement. Amounts are recycled from the cash flow hedoe reserve as and when hadged forecast
transactions occur.

For the year ended 30 September 2G17, a galn of £9.498,000 {2016: loss of £11,647,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive Income.
The tax affect recognised in other comprehensive income was a gain of £646,000 (2016: Enil), A total of £1,822 000 was recycled from equity 10
profit and loss (2016: Enilj, A tolad of £643,000 was recognised direclly into finance costs from hedge ineffectiveness and other components af tha
imMerest rate caps not designated as an hedging insiruments.

A regsonable change in interest rates would not have had a material impact in 2017 or 2016
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Farelgn currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where a subsidiary’s assets, llabilities. income and expenses are denominated in cumencies other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency. The Group's policy is to:

»  Akign the Term Loan's senviting costs in USDYEUR and operaling profits in USD/EUR
»  Monitor and where appropriate to hedge foreign currency transaction exposures

For the laiter, this is mos! prevalent in cedtain subsicharies where the cosis are largely denominated in GBP but revenue is earned in a number of
foreign curmencies. In this situation, foreign axchange contracts to sell foreign curencies and buy GBP afe entered into to tover a proportion of the
forecast foreign currency recespts Foreign currency receipts in USD and EUR are excluded from the hedging program due to Term Loan's
senvicing casts in USD and EUR.

The vaue of the Group's Tevenve, expenses and assets/iablliies that have USD, EUR and AUD foreign curency expasure is as follows’

usp EUR AUD
At 30 September 2017 £000 £'000 £'000
Nel (fiabllitiesVassets 114,391 (29.882) 5,563
Revenye 170,731 34,339 5,207
Expenses {2,104) {141) {348}

uso EUR AUD
At 30 September 2016 £000 £'000 £'000
Net (Kabiities)assets 48,478 37,732 5,766
Revenue 234,763 23,74 13,593
Expensas {2,559) {306} {396)

During tha year, the Group had a number of Jorward exchange conltracts which were used 1o reduce the forelgn axchange risk associaled with
revenue denommnated in foreign currencies as well as hedge against the effec! of foreign exchange movements on receivables denominated in
foreigh Curtencies. These forward contracts were designated as cash flow hedges on inceplion of the desfvative. Thera were recognised and
measured al fair value on the Statement of Financial Posilion, with mavements recognised in the Gonsolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, as long as the requirements for hedge accounting are met and are affective. All other movements on tha farward contracts are recognised
a5 an operaling cost in the Consalidated Income Staternent. Amounts are recycled from the cash flow hedge resene as and when hadged
forecast ransaclions occur. Thera arg no contracts unsetifed as at 30 September 2017 and the contracts whuich matured during the year are as
below:

Currency Total notional in locai currency Exchange rates
EUR 10,360,600 11764 - 1.2583
CAD 2,625,000 1.9897 - 1 9385
AUD 4,490,000 1.8735 - 1.8786

As at 30 Sepiember 20116, the unsettled forward contracts used for hedging purposes are as lollows

Currency Maturity Total notional in {ocal curtency  Exthange rats
EUR Na laler than March 2017 4,900,000 1.2529 . 1.2583
CAD No later than March 2017 4,490,000 1.8735 - 1.6786
AUD No tater than March 2017 2625,000 1.9897 - 1,9985
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As at 30 Septemnber 2015, the Group had a number of foreign exchange conlracts to sell USD and buy GBP at a fixed rale designated as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges. On 1 July 2016, the cash flow hedging relationship was terminaled. Subsequently, the fair value changas in
value of these derivatives have been recorded in “Fair value change through profit or loss®. At the paint of hedge termination a debil amount of
£5,614,000 was recorded in the cash flow hedge reserve and recycled to “non-recurring cosis™ as the highly probable lorecast transactlion occurs.

Accordingly, for the year ending 30 September 2017, £143,000 (2018: £9,340,000 charge} has been recognised in ather comprehensive income
The amount reclassified from equity o profit and loss was a charge of £4,618,000 (2016. £6,812,000), of which £549,000 was in revenue (2016:
£5,268.000) and £4,069,000 was in non-ecurting costs (2016 £1,544,000). No amounts in the curzent or prior year have been recoghised in the
Cansalidated Income Statement as a result of inaffectiveness. The lax effect recognised v olher comprehensive income was a gain of Enif (2016:
£2,493,000) and the amounts recycled into the tax charge was a credit of £1,1939,000 {2016. £1,284,000).

In addition the Group designated a EUR 101m porticn of the EUR Termn Loan as an hedging instrument in a net investment hedge in a foreign
operabion. The hedged risk {5 the foreign exchange risk ansng on the valua of the Group's net investiment in assets and liabilities in EUR
functional cwrency enlities. The net gain or joss under this arrangement is recognised in other comprehensive income. The net effect on other
comprehensive iIncome m the year ended 30 September 2017 was a loss of Enil (2016, nil).

The fofiowing table details the sensilivity of the Group's equily, revenue and expenses toa 10% decrease in GBP against US0, EUR and AUD.

UsD EUR AUD
At 30 Septembar 2017 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net {liabRities)Yassets 12,377 (3.320) 618
Revenue 18,870 3,815 579
Expenses (234) {16) (39)

UsD EUR AUD
At 20 September 2016 £000 £'000 £'000
Net (liabililies)assets 4,151 31629 k¥l
Ravenue 20,104 2,282 893
Expenses (223) {29) {26)

Capital management

The Group’s chjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide relums for
sharehnlders and benefils for other stakeholders and lo maintain an ophmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The Group is funded through a mixture of debt and equity and in common with its peers, the Group has long-term debt as a core slement of its
capital structure. The Group manages the risk with regards lo the avallability of debt by maintaining a close relationship with a number of different
debt providers. As at 30 Seplember 2017 the Group has the foflowing outstanding balances of senior secured foan USD 794.2m (2016 USD
738.8m) and EUR 149 6m (2016: nil).

The Group is subject to certain financial cavenants and was compliant with the refevant covenants for the year to 30 Seplember 2017. These
financial cavenants operate at a consolidated level for the Group and are based on IFRS The Group monitored the principal financial covenant
through rolkng forecasts of the mcome statement and slaterment of financial position and is forecast Jo be compliant during the forecast period.
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23 Contingent Habilities

Al 30 September 2017 the Group had conlingent liabilities in respect of guarantees and indemnities entered inla as pant of the ordinary course of
the Group's business. No material losses are likely {o arise from such contingent liabililies and therefore no provision has been recorded.

The Group is involved from time to time in the ordinary course of its business in certain claims and legal proceedings related to the Group's
operations, including employment-related matters. In the opinion of management, liabities, if any, arising from these daims and proceedings will
nol have a malerial adverse affect on the Group's consolidated financial posilion or the results of its operations.

The Group analyses Its igation exposure based on avallable information, including external fegal consuitation, where appropriate, 10 assess s
polential liabilty. Aside from the amounts disclosed in nole 20, the Group has accordingly made no provision in the financial statements.

30 Operating lease commitments

At 30 Septernber 2017 the Group had commitments under non-canceitable operating leases as set out belaw:

Land and Bulidings Qther
2017 206 207 2018
£900 £'000 E'000 £000
Not later than one year 15,539 14,249 2,008 1,050
Later than one year and not later than fiva years 32,5713 35,761 1,300 1036
Later than five years 6,683 10,058 4 -
54,795 60.068 3312 2.086

As at 30 Seplember 2017 folal amounts expected to be recelved under non-cancellable sub-lease arrangements were £3,644,000 (2016;
£5,119,000)

No amounts were credited 1o the income statement in raspest of sub-lease arrangements as this forms part of the onerous lease provision (see
note 20}

31 Defined contribution pension schemes

Tha Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemses as well as a defined benefit scheme. Tha assets of tha schemes are held
separately from thosa of the Group in an independently adminisiered fund. Tha pension cosl charge represents contributions payable by the
Group to the fund and amounted to £10,596,158 {2016: £9,966,000). Coniribulions autstanding at the end of the year amounied to £820,808
{2016: £679,914). See nota 32 for delails on the defined benefit scheme.

32 Defined banefit pension schema

The Group operates one kegacy defined benefit pension schems, the Windsor Retirement Benefits Scheme No 2. The assels of the scheme are
held in a separate trustee administered fund independent of the Company's finances.

The weiphled average duration af the expectsd benafit payments from the scheme Is around 12 years. The defined benefit scheme is operated
from a trust, which has assets which are held separately from the Company, and trusleas who ensure the schemnae's rules are strictly {ollowed.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised In full in the period in which thay occur. As permitted by 1AS19, acluarial gains and kisses ace
recognised oulside profil or loss as other comprehensive income, The figure recognised in the statement of financial position represents tha fair
value of lhe scheme assets reduced by the present value of the defined benefit cbligation.

An acluarial valuation was performed as at 30 September 2017 by an independent qualified sctuary In accordance with JAS19. As required by
IAS19, the value of the defined benefil obfigation has been measured using the projected unit tredit method and both the assels and liabilities
inciyde the value of those pensions in payment which are secured with insured annuities
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The (unding largel is for the scheme lo hold assets equal in value lo the accrued benefils based on projected satanes. If there 1s a shortfall
against this target, then the Company and trustees will agree on deficit conlributions 10 meet thus deficit over a peniod. There is a risk to the
Company that adverse experience could lead ta a requirement for the Company ta make addilional contribulions 1o recover any deficit that anses.

No contributions have been paid by the Company in the perioct Lo 30 Seplember 2017 and none are expecled it 2018 There are no longer any

aclive mermbers in the scheme.

Assumptions 2017 2016
Prica inflation A% pa 30%pa
Discou rate 2.5% pa 21%pa
Pension increase in payment {LPI) 0% pa 3.0%pa

On the basis of the assumplions used for life expeclancy, 2 male person age 65 al the accounting date would be expecied io live a further 24 1
years (2016: 24.0 years). A male person who altains age 65 In 20 years' tene is expecied o live a further 26.5 years (2016: 26.4 years). A female
person age 65 A the accounting date would be expecied to Sive a further 25.7 years {2016: 25.7 years), and a temale person who altans age 85 in

20 years' time is expected to live a further 27,7 years (2016 27.6 years).

The amount included in the staterment of financial position arising from the Company's obligations in respect of the scheme rs as follows,

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Fair value of scherne assets 2,99 3,142
Present value of schema kabilties {3.127) (3,264)
Deficit {136} {122)
Balance sheet lability (136} (122}
The amounts recognised in profit and loss are as foilows:
2017 2016
£000 £'000
Employer's part of current semace £os| (6} (6}
Interest cost (2} -
Tolal expensa included in profit and loss (8 (6}
The current aliocation of the schemea's assets is as follows
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Equities 19% 18%
Bonds 1% 19%
Insured pensiones policias/other 60% 63%
100% 100%

Nona of the assets of the scheme are direclly invested in the Company's own financial mstruments of i any property occupied by the Company.
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Changes in the fair vaiue of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2017 2046

£000 £00D
Opening defined benei cbigation 3,284 2728
Employers pan of current senice cosy L] ]
Interest cost 67 9g
Actuarial {gain)iicss {72y 559
Banefils paid {138} {128)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,427 3,264
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets ara as lollows:

2017 2018

£000 £'900
Qpening fair value of the scheme assets 3,142 2,816
Inlerest on schefne assels 1 2
Actud relurn on plan assels less inlerest on plan assets 78) 352
Benefits paid to scheme members {138) {128)
Closing fair value of scheme assats 2,991 3,142

The aciual retum on the scheme’s assets over the year ended 30 September 2017 was aloss of £13,000 {2016. a gain of £454,000).

The amount recognised outside profit and loss In other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 September 2017 was a charge of £6,000
{2016: £116,000), including the effect of the assel limil. This related to experience on benefit obligation of £34,000 charge (2016° £9,000 charge),
charge In financial assumplions of £106,000 gain (2016 £550,000 charge), aclual relum on plan assets less interest on plan assels of £78,000
loss (2016 £352,000 gain} and effect of asset celling of Enil (2016: £91,000 gain).

Sensitivity analysls

Discount rate

Effect of a 0.5% change
Inflation

Effect of 8 0.5% change
Friends Life with profits fund

Effect of 25% change in value
Life expectancy

Effect of a 1 year increase

Tha 2017 and 2016 sensithvity analysis & on a deficil.

Increase
2017
£000
{90}

20

{320}

Decrease
2017
£'000
110

{20)

3z

Increase
2016
£000
(105)

28

(330}

58

Decrease
2016
£'000
118

{(25)

330
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33 Rslated party transactions
The Group had the following transactions with refaled parties during the year,
217 2018
£'000 £'000
income/ {expense) Relationship
Fees paid to other Directors Direclors (50) {7
Fees paid o General Allantic Hawthom BV, Malor shareholder {100) {1090)
interest mcome on lpans to key management Key managemenl 17 -
{133} {170}
Amounts recalvable/ {payable) at the end of the year
L Munoz Rojas directors fees payahle Director 13} {13)
General Atlantic Hawthom B.V. fees payeble Major shareholder {100) {100)
(113) {113}

Amounits included within other short-term debtors and creditors

The Group had the following settled fransactions wth key management during the year

«  Short term loans tAaling £1,000,000 {2016: Enil) were exlended ta members of key management which were inlerest beating, These loans

werg repaid as at 30 Seplember 2017
»  Amounts totalling £7.490,000 {2016. £3,757,000) were paid (o settle deferred consideration or to acquire NCI
Compensation awarded to the Directors of the Group is disclosed in nole 6

Compensation awarded 10 key management (Group Executive Commiites)-

2017 2016

E'000 £000
Short-term empioyee benefits 8,164 4138
Post-employment benefits 48 282
Termination banefils 1.020 310
Share-pased payment 346 83
2,578 4813

Share capital transactions

During the year ended 30 September 2017, General Atlantic Hawthorn B.V., acquired a net total of 2,249,401 "A" ordinary shares for £20,035,363
(2016: 3,908,197 A" crdinary shares for £21,723,922) from the Group. As at 30 Seplember 2017, General Atlantic Hawthom B V' held a total of

31,895,717 A" ordinaty shares {2016: 29,646 316 "A" ordinary shares).

During the year ended 30 September 2017, the Directors and other members of the Group Executiva Committea disposed of a net tolat of
325,034 "A" ordinary, acquired a nel total of 7,000 "B" ordinary and acquired 314,000 “C" ordinary shares for a nel consideration received of
E£3,003,047, As at 30 September 2017, the directors and key management heid a total of 19,659,770 "A” ordinary shares, 241,300 “8" shares”,
and 2,549,600 *C* shares {2016 17,864,590 "A" ordinary shares, 140,000 "B" ordinary shares and 2,235,600 "C* sharas). This excludes "D" and

"E" shares, which afe \reated a5 shars based payments,
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34 Business combinations

Barge y Asoclados. Cotrechurla de Seguros, S.A.

'/
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On 11 July 2017, the Group acquired 100% of Berge y Asotiados. Correduria de Seguros, S.A. ("Bergé”) {renamed Howden Drive, SAU on 11
July 2017}, an insurance broker based in Spain specialising in molor insurance. This acquisiion bas opportunities for revenus synergies m this

area

The purchase consideration and the fair value of the assets and fabililies recognised on acquisilion are as follows:

2017

£000
Purchase consideration
Cash paid 1423
Fair value of deferred consideraton 2046
Fair value of contingent consideration 295
Total purchase considesation 4,774
Recognised amounts of ientifiable assetls acquited and labifties as5umed
Property, plant and equipment 37
Ildentifiabe intangible assets 4,092
Trade and other receivables 131
Cash and cash equivalents 718
Insurance cash and cash equivalenis 571
Insurance payahie (&71)
Trade and aother payables (86)
Corporation taxation (187}
Delered taxation {983)

3,709
Net assets acquired 3,708
Goodwilt 1,065

Contingent consideralion is payabla to sellers complying with all provisions of agreement and due three years after acquisitions. Non-compliance

will resuk In no contingent consideration paid. It has been assumed it will be paid oul.

Goodwill reprasents assembled workforce, cost and revenue synergies to tha Group. None of the goodwill recognised is expected lo be deduclibie

for income 1ax purpases.

Since acyuisition Bergé has contributed revenue of £326,000 and an EBITDA of £186,000 to the Group.

Acquigition related costs of £28,000 were incurred during the year. These wara included within acquisition costs in the consdlidaled income

slatement for \he yeer ended 30 September 2017,



'/

HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Yaar Ended September 30, 2017

Sterling Knight

On 11 and 21 July 2017, the Group acquired 100% of Sterding Knight (Privale) Limiled and Sterling Knight Sdn Bhd respeclively (collectively
referred to as “Sterfing Knight™). They are insurance brokers based in Singapore and Malaysia specialising in Specie and Employee Benafils. This
acquisition increases the Group's presence in Singapore and Malaysia and opportunities for revenue synergies in particular over Emnployee
Benefils.

The purchase consideration and the far value of the assets and liabiliies recognised on acquisition are as follows.

2017

£'000
Purchase consideration
Cash pad 4,742
Far value of conlingent consideration 2,082
Total purchase conslderation 7,124
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment [}
Identfiable intangible assels 2,785
Trade and other recewvables a8
Cash and cash equivalents 654
Trade and other payables (8)
Income tax payable (58)
Corporalion taxation 23
Deferred taxation (516}

2977
Net assets acquired 24877
Goodwill 4,747

Contingent consideration is due one year after acquisition depending on performance. The amount can vary between 0% fo 115% of a base
amounl. It has been assumed the base amount will become payable.

Gooxiwill represents assembled workforce, cost and revenue synergies to the Group. None of the goodwill recagnised is expecied o be deductible
for income tax purposes

Since acquisition Sterling Knight has contributed revenue of £1,123,000 and an EBITDA of £903,000 10 the Group.

Acquisition-related costs of £36,000 were Incurred during the year. These are included within acquisition costs in the consolidated income
statemnent for the year ended 30 Seplember 2017,
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# these acquisitons had been made on 1 Oclober 2016, the consolidated income statement, under IFRS, for the year ended 30 September 2017
would have been revenue of £544,1m and EBITDA of £142.0m

Finalisation of fajr value adjustments

In the year end 30 September 2016, the Group made a number of acquisitions. The lair values of the identiliable asset and liabiiikes at the dale of
acquisition wese provisionally estimated and disclosed W the 2016 Financial Statements. In 20186, the provisional values have been finalised within
one year of tha acquisition dale, feading to the foliowang changes, which have not been rostated for 2016

ingrease/{decrease)

£000
Properly, plant and equipment 11
Intangible assets {109)
Trade and other receivables {16}
Cash and cash equivalents 894
Trada and other payables (1.840)
insurance cash and cash equivalents {1.147)
Insurance payables 1,136
_{1,071)
Mon-controlting interest 428
Nel agsets acquired {643)
Goodwill 643

35 Uitimate controlling party
The Group had no controthng shareholder at 30 September 2017, or al 30 September 2016,

36 Capltal commitments

The Group has capdal commitments in refation lo the acquisition of minority shareholdings and put options over MHyperion shases; further
information is in note 19 and 22. Tha Group had no olher capital commitments as at 30 Septernber 2017, or at 30 September 2016,
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37 Subsidiary and associated companies

The following were the subsidiary and associste enbties at 30 September 2017. Unless otherwise shown, the capital of each company is whotly-
owned, is in ondinary shares and the principal country of operation is the country of incorporation.

DUAL Australia Ply Limited Ausiralia 79 Level 6, 160 Sussex Slreet, Sydney NSW 2000

FP Marnine Risks Australia Pty Limited Ausiralia 60 Level 10, 140 Arthur Street, North Sydney 2060

Howden Insurance Brokers (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda 100 14 Par-{a-Ville Road, Hamilton, HM 08

Benefit Admitistradora de Beneficios Lida Brazi 75 Av Luiz Carlos Berrini, 105 andar, sala 102 B, Torre Bertini
One, Sdc Paulo

Harmonia Comretora de Seguros S5.A Brazil 75 Av Luiz Carlos Berrini, 105 andar, sala 102 8, Torre Berrini
Ona, S0 Paulo

Phuris Re Corretora de Resegguies Lida Brazi 75 Av Luiz Carlos Berrini, 105 andar, sala 102 B, Torre Rerrini
One, Sao Paulo

BluCurve Limited Bvt 50 PO Box 857 Ofishore Incorporations Cenlre, Torlola

Chalgrove Limited BVI 100 PO Box 857 Offshore Incorporations Centre, Torola

FP Group Lirnited BvI 100 PO Box 957 Offshore Incorporations Centre, Tortola

FP intemational Holdings Limited Bvt 100 PO Box 857 Offshore Incorporations Centre, Tortola

Lansdown Hill Limited BvI 100 PO Box 957 Offshore Incorporalions Centre, Torlola

DUAL Commermial (Canada) inc, Canada 100 Suite 2500 1 Dundas Street Wesl, Toronto M5G1Z3

Penslones y Salud Agenle de Medicina Prepagada Colombia 58 Carrera 7 No. 32-33 Piso (Floor) 23 Bogola D.C.

SA

Howden Re Corredores de Seguros S A Colombia 84 Camera 7 No. 32 - 33 Piso 23, Bogota

Proseguros Corredores de Seguros S.A. Colombia 84 Carmrera 7 No. 32 - 33 Piso 23, Bogota

Howden Wacolda S.A. Corredores de Seguros Colombia 58 Camrera 7 No. 32 — 33 Piso 23 , Bogota

HC Consutting SAS Colombia 58 Cantera 7 No. 32 - 33 Piso 23 , Bogota

Asesorias e [nversiones Howden-Patagonia S.A Chile 51 Apoquindo 4660 Of 301, Las Condes, Santiage de Chule

Howden-Patagonia Corredores de Seguros SpA Chile 50 Avenida Apoquindo N 4660 , Oficina 301, Las Condes,
Santiago

Soctedad Coiredora de Reaseguros Howden Chile Chile 75 Mwguet Claro 195 B10, Providencia

SA.

RKH Specialty Curacaa N.V. Curacao 51 Julianapiein 30A, Willemstad

RKH Speciaity Cardbbean N.V. Curacao 51 Julianaplein 39A, Willemstad

Seassurancen Danmark A/S Denmark 19 Skolegade 1, 5960 Marstal, Denmark

Howden Insurance Brokers LLC™™" Dubai 33 Al Nasr Plaza,3rd floor, Oud Metha, PO BOX 49195

Wacolda S.A. Agencia Asesora Produciora de Ecuador 58 Catalina aldaz , N34155 y Porlugatl, Quito

Seguros

DUAL Finland Oy Finland 100 Merimishenkalu 29, 00150, Helsinki

Howden Finland Oy Elnland 96 Malminkaari , 9 B 00700 Helsinki

Howden Insurance Brokers Oy Finland 100 Malminkaari 9 B, , HELSINKI, 00700

Epc Euro-Pensions Consult GmbH Germany &0 Dr.-Gessler-Strala 37, 93051, Regensburg

Euro Englneer Consulling GmbH Germany &0 Dr.-Gessler-Sirafle 37, 93051, Regenshurg

Ewo Risk Immobilien Sendces GmbH Germany 60 Kurze Mihen 20, 20095, Hamburg

Eurcassekuranz Versicherungsmakler AG Germany 60 Dr.-Gessler-Strafie 37, 93051, Regensburg

IMMO VersicherungsMakler GmbH Germany 3 Liienthalallea 25, 80939, Munich, Garmany

Howden Caninenberg GrabH Germany 89 Belfonistrasse 15, 50668, Cologne

Howden M3A {Germany) GmbH Germany 51 Frankfurt am Main, Theresienh3he , 80339, Munich

DUAL Specialty M&A GmbH Germany 100 Schanzenstr, 36, 51063 Kain,

DOUAL Ceutschland GmbH Germany 100 Schanzenstralle 36, 51063, Koin

Erwin Himmelseher Assekuranz-Vermnitiiung ~ Germany 45 Theodor-Heuss-Ring 23, 50668 Kéin

Beteikgungsgesellschall GmbH***

Erwin Himmelseher Assekuranz-Vermiltiung GmbH & Germany 415 Theodor-Heuss-Ring 23, 50668 Kain

Co. KG

Howden Geanany GmbH Gemany 100 Arnheimer Sir. 142, 40489, Dusseldorf

Howden Genmany HoldCo GmbH Germany 100 Belforisirasse 15, 50668, Cologne

HVR Hamburger Vermogensshaden-Haftpflicht Germany 100 Jungfernstieg 49, 20354 Hamburg

Risikomanagement GmbH

Howden Sicherheit Intemational Gmbh Germany 89 Belforistrasse 15, 50668, Cologne

SPS -Sales Pramctions & Solutions GmbH & Co. KG Gesrmany a3 Am Gries 4f, 85435, Erding

SPS - Verwallungsgesellschaft Sales Promotions & Germmany 8g Am Gries 41, 85435, Erding

Solutions mbH

SR Special Risk Consortium GmbH Germany 72 Belfortstrasse 15, 50668, Cologne

"
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DUAL Underwriting Agency {FHong Kong) Limiled

FP Marine Risks Linuted

FP Reinsurance Brokers Limited

HBG Asia Holdings Limited

Howden Insurance Brokers (HIK) Limiled
Howden Insurance Brokers india Povate Ltd**

PT Howden Insurance Brokers Indonesia
PT RKH Specialty Indonesia

Bar-Ziv Ravid Insurance Agency Limited

Eldan Bar-Ziv Ravid Insurance Agency (2009) Ltg***
Howden General and Marine Insurance Brokers
{2011} Limited

Howden insurance Brokers (2002) Limited

Howden Intemational Underwriters General insurance
Agency (2002) Limited

MM Management Risk Consultants Limited

DUAL ltatia S.p.A

Howden Korea Company Limited

Hyperion Development S.41.1.

Hyperion Euro Growth S.a.r.l.

Hyperion Refinance S.arl

CH Global {1} Limited™*

CH intemational PCC (L) Bhd**

CiMB Howden Insurance Brokers Sdn, Bhd."**
HIG Risk Management Senvices Sdn. Bhd.

Howden Risk Management Consultants Sdn. Bnhd.
Howden Risk Solutions Sdn, Bhd.

Sterling Knight Sdn Bhd

HBG {Mauritius) Lid

Howden (Mauritius} Ltd
Charterama B.V.
DUAL Netherlands B.V.

Howden Insurance Brokers Nedesiand B.V,

DUAL New Zealand Limited

Howden Forsikringsmegling AS

Howten insurance Brokers LLC

Wacolda Risk Management and Transfer S.A.C.***
Accetie Uife & Accident Insurance Brokers, Inc.

Howden Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers (Phil.), Inc.
Ultramar Reinsurance Biokers, inc.

Donaria Spdtka Akcyjna

DUAL Poiska Sp. z 0.0

Kanceleria Brokerska Modemn Brokers Sp. 2 0.0
HY Marine Rigks Limited

DUAL Specialty Underwriters inc.

DUAL Underwriling Agency (Singapore) Pte. Limited
HBG Holdings (Singapore} Pte Limiled
Howden insurance Brokers (S.) Ple. Limited
RKH Speciaity Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Sterling Knight (Private) Limited

DUAL Ibérica Riesgos Profesionales S.A.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
India

Indonesia
Indonesia

lseael
Israel
Israel

Israel
Israal

Philippines
Philippinas
Phifippines

Potand
Pdand
Poland
PRC
Puero Rico
Singapore
Singapora
Singapore
Singapore
Singapore
Spain

0

100
100
100
100
2%

100
100

100
a4
100

68
100

100
95
40
100
100
100
49

49

49
100

100
100
100
100
100
38
100
51
93
100
52
40
100

100

Suile 2103, 24/F, Fu Fai Commercial Centre, 27 Hiliier
Street, Sheung Wan

5001, 501h Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road

27F Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road, Central

26/F, The Centrium, 60 Wyndham Streel, Central

26/F, The Cenlsum, 60 Wyndham Streel, Central

6th Floor Peninsula chambers, Peninsula Corporate Park,
Mumbai

Mayapada Tower Bth Floor, JI. Jend Sudiman Kav 28,
Jakarta

Mayapada Tower FI. 08-01. M. Jend Sudirman kav. 28,
Jakanta

35 Efal Street, Pelah Thva

20 Hamasger Street, Tal Aviv, 61366

Adgar Tower, 35 Efal Sireel, Petach Tikva, 4951132

Adgar Tower, 35 Efal Streel, Petach Tikva, 4851132
Adgar Tower, 35 Efal Street, Pelach Tikva, 4951132

35 Efa) Street, Petah Tikva

Via Edmondo De Amicis, 51, 20123, Milan

8th Fioor Seorin Bidg, 88 Seatin-dong, Jongno-gu, Seoul
128 Boulevard de la Pelrussae, L-2330

126 Boulevard de la Petrusse, L-2330

128 Boudevard de ta Petrusse, L-2330

Brumby Centre , Lot 42, Jalan Muhibbah B7000 Labuan F.T
Mala

Brumby Cenire , Lot 42, Jatan Muhibbah 87000 Lebwan F.T
Mala
13.03, Menara Tan & Tan, 207 Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 KL
1-10-E1A CPS Tower, 1 Cenlra Point Sabah, Jalan Cenlre
Paint 88000 Kola Kinabalu, Sabah
C-2503, 3 Two Square 2, Jalan 19/, 46300 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
1-10-E1A CPS Tower, 1 Cenire Point Sabah, Jalan Cenire
Poinl BE00D Kota Kinabalu, Sabah
3A, Wisma Mohamed Ebrahim 87, Jalan Tuanku Abdul
Rahman, 50100 KL
¢Jo ML Administralors Lid, ath Floor Henessy Tower , Pope
Henessy Street, Port Luis
42 Hotel Street, 3 GFin Tower Cybercity, Ebene, 72201
Veerkade 1,3016 DE, Rotterdam
World Trade Center, Beurspiein 37, 3011 AA Relterdam,
3001 DD ROTTERDA, PO Box 30150
Vearhaven 7, 3016 CJ , Rolterdam
20 AXA Centre, 191 Queen Sireat, Auckland, 1010
Karenslyst Allg 55, Oslo, 0277
Alwatiayah / Muttrah / Muscat, 117
Mic.Cisneras Nro, 740 DPTO, 302 Lima, Miraflores
331 Gil Puyat, Building,331 Sen., Gil Puyal Avenue, Makati
City 1200
331 Gil Puyat, Building 331 Sen., Gil Puyat Avenua, Makati
City 1200
331 G Puyat, Building,331 Sen,, Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati
City 1200
ul. Wielkie Garbary 7A, 87-100 Torun
87-100 Torun, ul. Browarna 10
Wazysikich Swistych 2B/3, 50-136 , Wroclaw
Room 906, 173 Guangji Road, Shanghai
361 San Francisct Strest, San Juan, 060901
4 Shenton Way, #21-01 SGX Centre 2, 068807
61 Robinson Road 7-1, Robinson Centre, 068893
€1 Robinson Road 7-1, Robinson Cenlre, 068993
61 Robinson Road, 18-1 Robinson Cenire, 068893
11 Keng Cheow Street, #02-03, 053608
Plaza dea Lealtad 2 , 2a planta, 28014, Madnd
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Howden Amenca Investmenis S.L.
Howden |beria 5.A.

Howden Latin Amenca Holdings S L U
Howden Drive, S AU

Howden Insurance Brokers AB

Howden Insurance Brokers Wes! AB
Howden Pun insurance Brokers Limited

Howden Insurance Brokers (Thailand) Limited***
TWB (Thailand) Limited***
GRC Howden Reasurans Brokerfigi Anomm Sirkedi

Howden Sigorta Brokerbigr Anonwm Sirketi

Clinical Trials Insurance Services Limited

DCR (Fi) Limited

DUAL Asset Underwriting Limited

DUAL Corporats Risks Limited

DUAL international Limited

DUAL Intemational Underwnting | imited

DUAL Marine & Energy Limited

DUAL Ohva Limnited

DUAL, Overseas Investments Limited*

DUAL PERL Limited

DUAL Speciaity Risks Limited

DUAL Underwriting Limited

Global Services 1999 Limited®

Group Central Senvices Ltd

HB&A Services Limited

HIG Finance Limited**

HIG Finance 2 Limited**

Howden (NA2) Limited

Howden Broking Group Limited™"

Howden Workplace Consulting Limited

Howden Insurance Brokers Limited

Howden UK Group Limited

Howden M&A Limited

Hypetion Development UK Limited

Hyperion Marine Holdings Lamited*

Hyperion Services Limited®*

Hyperion & Pariners Limited**

Ostrakon Capital (2) Limited*

Howden Mexico HoldCo Limited

Perkins Slade Limited

Aqueduct Portfolio Management {imited

RKH Specialty Limited

Prime Care Insurance Services imiled

Precision NFP Limited

R K Harrison Corporate Trustee Limited

RKH Group Limited

R K Harrison Insurance Brokers Limited

R K Harmmison Insurance Services Limiled

R K Harrison Reinsurance Brokers Limiled
amesis DUAL Uimited

/\"Vindsor Insurance Brokers Limited

Windsor Limited®

Windsor Partrers Limited

Windsor Profassional Indemnity Limited

Windsor Services Limited

Windsor Trusleas Limited”

Chelsea Risk Management & Insurance Seraces, Inc.

DUAL Commercial LLC

DUAL Re Ametica LLC

DUAL North America Inc.

Enargy. Industrial & Utility Risk Solutions LLC

Howden Insurance Services, Inc

Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Sweden
Sweden
Tanzania
Thailand
Thafland
Turkay

Turkey

ccc
AEXXR
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CCEECEECcEcCcCcoEcEceEcecececee
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c
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us

USA
usa
usa
USA
usa

84
100
100
100
a5
67

51

49
49
96

160

100
100
54
100
100
100
109
ar
100
83
100
100
100
100
50
100
100
100
100
65
100
100
51
100
160
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
20
100
100
100
100
100
75
100
100
100
100
99
100
75
100
100
100
100
100

Avenida de fa Palmera 288 2*, 41012 Sevilla

C/ Montalban n®7, 28014, Madrid

Calle Montalban n® 7, 28014 Madrig

Calle Alcala, 85, Madnd,

Linégalan 2, SE-114 47 , Stockholm

Fredsgatan 1, 411 67 Gothenbury

60 Ursino Streal, Regent Estale, PO Box 79958, Dar ES
Salaam

2 Ploenchit Center, Sukhumvit Road, Banghkok

496 Amarin Plaza Building, Ploenchil Road, Bangkok

18 Mayis Mah. SGmer Sok., Zitas Ismerkezi C5 Blok, No:11

Kadkay, Istanbul

18 Mayis Mah. SOmer Sok., Zitas lsmerkezi C5 Slok, No.11

Kadikdy, {stanbul

16 Easicheap, London, ECIM 1BD

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhal Street, London, EC3A 4AF

Firat Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Stree!, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

First Floor, 107 Leadenhall Street, London, EC3A 4AF

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

Frp Advisory Lip, 1 Queen Sireel, Bristol, 852 0HQ

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

15 Easicheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Eas!cheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Easicheap, London, EC3IM 1BD

71 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 4BS

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Eastcheap, London, ECIM 18D

16 Eastcheap, London, ECIM 1BD

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 1BD

Epsilon House, West Road, Ipswich, Suffoik, IP3 9FJ

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 18D

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 180

16 Easicheap, London, EC3M 18D

First Fioor, 107 Leadenhalt Streal, London, EC3A 4AF

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 180

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 18D

71 Fenchurch Street, London, ECIM 4BS

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 1BD

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 180D

16 Eastcheap, London, EC3M 18D

1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 31, Naples FL 34102

1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Maples FL 34102

1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Neples FL 34102

1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Naples Fi. 34102

1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Naplas FL 34102

Suite 507, One University Plaza, Hackensack NJ 07601
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

RKH Specialty Miami LLC USA
Howden Speclalty tUnderwriters, LLC LUSA
Qdyssey Insurance GP, LLC USA
Odyssey Insurance, Inc., USA
Odyssey Insurance, LP USA
Tamesis DUAL Americas (LC USA
VK Underwriters LLC USA

160

100
100
100
100
75
100

Sabadell Firancial Center. 1111 Brickell Avenue, Suile
2725, Miari FL 33131

1100 Sih Avenue 5. Suite 301, Naples FL 34102
1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Naples FL 34102
1100 5th Averwe 5, Suite 301, Naples FL. 34102
1100 5th Avenue S, Suite 301, Naples FL 34102
1100 5th Avenwe S, Suite 301, Naples FL 34102
1100 5th Avenue S. Suile 301, Naples FI. 34102

* Subsidiaries that are exempl from awdil by virlue of section 479A of the Companies Acl 2006

“* Held directly by Hyperion Insurance Group Limiled

" Although legal ownership is less than 50%, financial resulls are 100% consolidaled for the purposes of these financial slatements, as the

Group has effective coniral over these entities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statemants

For the Year Ended $September 30, 2017

Summansed financial nformabion in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that have matenal non-controlhing interes!s is &1 out below The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

2017 2016
Eurcassekuranz Versicherungsmalder AG and conlrolled eniilies £'000 £000
Statement of financial position
Non-current assels 25328 26,082
Current assets 11,947 14,634
Non-current Eabilites (6.773) {7.468)
Current kabiliies {9.210) (9,573)
Equrty atiributable to owners of the Group 12,775 14,205
MNon-controlling interests 8.517 9470
Income statement
Revenue 15,809 -
Expenses {15,009) -
Dividends received - -
Proit for the year 800 -
Profit atinbutable to owners of the Group 480 -
Profit attributable ta the non-controlling interasts 320 -
80O -
Qther comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Group - -
Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-controliing Inlerests hd :
Other comprehensive income . -
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Group 480 -
Mmsm income attributable to the non-conuolling interasts 320 -
Total comprehensive INcome 800 -
Dividends pad to non-controlling inleresls 1,718 -

75



1/

HYPERION
INSURANCE GROUP
HYPERIOM INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
HNotes ta the G« lidated i ial Stat s
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017
2017 2016
Howden Sicherhel! Intematonal GmbH and conlrolied entities {restaled)
£'000 £000
Statemrent of financial position
Non-current assets 24,924 28,598
Current assels 32,199 29913
Non-current Eabililies {10,307} {9,864)
Current liabiiies {30,196) 128,971)
Equity altributable 10 owners ol the Group 6,828 6,379
Non-controlling inerests 9,792 12,497
Income statement
Revenue 23,976 21,478
Expenses {18.567) (14,948)
Dividends received 10,072 8947
Profit for the year 15481 15,477
Profit attributable lo owners of the Group 11,081 10,315
Profit afiribuiable to the non-controling interests 4.400 5.162
15,481 15,477
Qther comprehensive incoma attributabla to owners of the Group - .
Other comprehensive income atirbutable o the non-controfling interests - -
Qther comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income attribulable (o owners of the Group 11,081 10,315
Total comprehensive income atiributable lo the non-controfling interests 4,400 5.162
Toltal comprehensive income 15481 15,477
Dividends paid 10 non-controling interests 4,705 4,224
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017
2017 2016
Howden Insurance Brokers LLC (Dubist). £:000 £000
Statement of financial position
Non-current assets 380 152
Current assets 25,958 11,012
Non-current Habilities - .
Current Yiabililies {19.828) {7.840)
Equity attributable to owners of the Group 2,148 1.097
Non-controlking interests 4,362 2,732
Incoma statement
Revenue 6,490 3,983
Expenses (3,549) {2,204)
Dividends received - -
(Loss)yprofit for the year 2,941 1,779
Profit atinbutable to owners of the Group 97 5687
Profit attributable 1o the non-controlling nerests 1,970 1,192
2,941 1,779
Other comprehensive income attribulabie to owners of the Group - .
Other comprehensive income aftributable to the non-controliing Interests - -
Other comprehensive income - .
Total comprehensive income altributable 10 owners of the Group 971 587
Totat comprehensive income attributable to the non-controfting interests 1,970 1,192
Total comprehensive income 2,941 1779
Dividends paid {o non-controifing interests 203 253

38 Events after balance sheet date

On 1 October 2017, the Group underwent a fegal enlity re-organisation in relation to UK broking opesation This does not have a signdicant
financtal impact at Group levet or result in a change in operaling segment.

On 10 November 2017, the Group committed to consolidate four London office localions into one location with lease inception expected to ba on
25 December 2017. The office move is expected lo result in a nor-recurring charge of appraximately £29m reflecting onerous feases (£11m),
impairment of fixed assets (ESm), leass, rates and service costs in redation lo the new office during the fit out phase (£Bm) and other project

relaled costs. Capital expenditure of approxdmately £28m Is expecled to be incurred in relation to fitling out the new offices dunng calandar year
2018

On 4 December 2017, Hyperion announced that Caisse de dépdt et placement du Québec (*CDPQT) had signed a conditional agreement {o
become a significant minority shareholder in the Company alongside General Atlantic. Subject to regutatory consents, CDPQ will invest more than
$400m to provide new grawth equity as well as liquidity to existing shareholders
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditer’s Report on the Parent Company to the members of Hyperion insurance Group Limited
For the Year Ended 30 September 2017

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Oplnion

in our opinion:

* The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of ihe Company's affairs as at 30 Seplember 2017

«  The financiol statements have been properly prepared in accordanca with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prachice mcludng
Financial Repoding Standard 102 “The Financial Reporling Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™

e The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audiled the financial statements of Hyperion Insurance Group Limited (the ‘parent company’} which comprise
= The Company balance sheet

» The statement of accounting policies

* The related notes 1 to 21

The hinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial stalements s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accouting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standacd 102 “The Financlal Reporting Standard applicabla in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” (Uniled Kingdomn Generally Accepled Accounting Praclice).

Basls for opinlon

We canducted our audit m accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I$As(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibiities under
those slandards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements seclion of our report.

We are independent of the campany in accordance with the ethical requirements that ara relevant to our audit of the financial statemernts in the
UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have {ulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficlent and sppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating io going conctern
We are required by 1SAs {UK) 1o report in respect of the folowing matters where:
= The Directors' use of the going concem basis of accounting i preparation of the financial siatements is not appropriate

+ The Disectors’ have not disclosed in the financial statemenis any identified malerial uncerlainties that may cast significant doubt about the
company's ability to continue 1o adopt the going concem basis of accounting for a period of at least tweive months from the date when the
financlal statements are aythorised for Issue

Wea have nathing ta report in respect of these matters.

Cther information

The Direclors’ are responsitle for the other information. The other information comprises the information inchuded in the annual repost |, oihier than
the financial statements and our auditor's report therson. Gur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent atherwise explicitly stated in our repont, we do not axpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information Is materially inconsistent with tha financial slatements or our knowledge oblained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materally misstated. {( we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent matesial misstatements, we are required ta determine whether there
is a materal misstatement in the financial statemants or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on tha work we have
performed, we conclude that there i$ a material misstatement of this other information, we are required (o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these mafters.

Rasponsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities siaternent, tha Direclors’ are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal conltrol as the directors deferming is necassary lo enable the
preparation of financial slatements thal are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

in preparing the financial statements, the Direclors are responsible for assessing the company's ablity to continue as a going concern, disclasing,
as applicable, matiers related o golng concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless tha directors eithar intend Lo liquidate the
company of to Cease operations, or hava no reabstic aiternative but 1o do s0.
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independent Auditor’s Report on the Parent Company to the members of Hyparion Insurance Group Limited
For the Year Ended 30 Saptember 2017

Auditor's responsibilities for the audil of the financial statements

Our objeclives are fo oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or emmor, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our oprion. Reasonable assurance s a high fevel of assurance, but is
net a guaraniee that an audil conducted i accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always delect a material misstalement when it exisls. Misslalements
can anse from fraud or eror and are consxdered malenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled lo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial siatemenis.

A further description of our responsibiibes for the audil of the financial stalements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at,
www.frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our repert
This report 15 made solely 1o the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audt

work has been undertaken 50 that wa might state to the Company's members Ihose matters we are requited o state to them i an audilor’'s report
and for no ather purpose. To Lhe fullest exdent permnitied by law, we do not accept or assurme responsibility 10 anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a body, lor our audht work, lor thus report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on other tegal and regulatory requirements

Opirions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opnion, based on 1he work undertaken in the course of the audit.

» The mformation given In the sirategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial stalements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements

» The stralegic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and Hs environment oblained in the course of the audil, we have nol wentified any
material misstatements n the strategic report or the direclors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required o report in respect of the following matters if, in our opuon:

= Adequate accounting records have not been kepl by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
vislied by us

= The Company financial statemenls are not in agreement with the accounting records and returms
» Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made

*  We have nct received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Wae have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other matter

Wa ?ve roparted separately on the Group financial statements of Hyperion Insurance Group Limited for the year ended 30 September 2017,
7 e sen o —
ark Mcllquham, ACA (Senior stalutory auditor}

for and on behalf of Deloilte LLP
London UK
December 2017
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
30 SEFTEMBER 2017
2057 2016
Note E£'000 £'000
Fixud assats
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 6 84,562 57,296
Current assels
Debtors due withn one year 7 10,477 151,849
Debtors dua after more than one year 7 185,736 418,209
Cash and cash equivalents 18,355 19,767
414,568 587,845
Creditors
Amounts falling due with one year 9 (218,793) {357.747)
Net current assels 195,175 230 0948
Total assets less current Hablittles 180,337 287 394
Creditors
Amaunts lfalking due atter more than year 10 - {11.003)
HNet asssts 280337 276,391
Capltal and reservas
Called up shara capital 14 854 854
Share premium 16 4,094 4,094
Other reserves 16 {1,378) {3,504)
Relained eamnings 18 276,767 274,947
280,337 276,391

The financial statements wera approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 13 December 2017. They were signed on its behalt

by

David Howden Oliver Corbatt

Chigf Executive Chiel Financial Officer
Company number 2937398

The notes on pages 83 lo 89 form an integral part of these financial statemenis,



HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

SHARE CAPITAL SHARE OTHER RETAINED TOTAL

PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS EQuITY

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

As at 1 October 2016 854 4,094 {3,504) 274,947 276,31

Profil for the year - - - 1.820 1,820
Other Comprehensive income for the year - - - - -

Total Comprehensive incorme lor the year - - - 1,820 1,820

Share-based payments - - 1,632 - 1.632

EBT share reserve movement - 494 - 494

As at 30 Septamber 2017 854 4,084 {1,378} ZE];@‘J'_ 284,337
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

SHARE CAPITAL SHARE OTHER RETAINED TOTAL
CAPITAL RESERVES EARNINGS EQUITY
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

As at 30 Septemnber 2015 876 254,209 (8.857) 13,044 261,272
Pyofil for ihe year - - - 5,694 5694
Other Comprehonsiva income for the year - - - - .
Tolal Comprehensive income for the year - - - 5,694 5,694
Shares issved during the year 8 4,004 - - 4,102
Purchase of own shases {30) - 30 - -
Share based paymenis - - 2,425 - 2,425
Transfer (affrom profit and loss account - (254,209) - 254,209 -
EBY share reserve movement - - 2.898 - 2,398
As at M September 2016 854 4094 {3,504) 274,947 276,331
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1 General information

The Company 15 a private company mited by shares and is incorporated in the United Kingdom The address of its registered office 1s 16
Easicheap, L.ondon, EC3M 1BD.

These financial stalemenls present information about the Company as an indwvidual undertaking.

2 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The followmng accounhing pobcies have been applied in dealing with ilems that are considered malerial in relation to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared under Lhe hislonical cosl convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102, the
Fmancial Reporting Slandard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of ireland and the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial siaternenls in comphiance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates |t also reguires
management lo exercise judgment in applying the Company's accounling pdicies (see note 3).

{b) Financlal reporting standard 102 + reduced disclosure exemptions

For the year ended 30 Seplember 2017 and subsequent pericds, the Company has taken advaniage of the followang disclosure exemptions in
preparing the financlal stalements as permitled by FRS 102 paragraph 1.12 (a) - (e) :

« Therequiremenis of Section 4 Statement of Fnanclal Position paragraph 4.12{a){iv}

s The requirements of Sectron 7 Statemen! of Cash Flows

+ The requirements of Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph 3.17(d)

« The requirements of Section 11 Financlal Instruments paragraphs 11.39 to 14 48A

» The requirements of Section 12 Other Financial Instruments paragraphs 12.26 to 12,29

o The requirements of Section 26 Share-based Payment paragraphs 26.18(b). 26.18 1o 26.21 and 26.23
s The requirements of Section 33 Related Party Disclosures paragraph 33.7

This information will be included in the consolidated financial statements of Hyperion Insurance Group Limiled as at 30 September 2017 and
these financial statements may be obtained from The Group Finance Depariment, 16 Eastcheap, London, ECIM 1BD.

{¢) Golng concern

The Company's business activities, future outiock, business risks and uncertainties and fisk management are sel out in tha Oireclors’ Report and
Strategic Report,

Having considered the aforementioned, and after making enquiries, the Direclars have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational exstence for the foreseaable future, Accordingly, the Company cantinues to adopt tha going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

{d) Valuation of investmants

Invesimenis in subsidiaries are maasured al cos! less accumulated impairment. Whera merger relief is applicable, the cost of tha investment in a
subsidiary undertaking is measured at the nominal value of the shares issued together with the fair value of any additional consideration paid.

(o) Dabtors

Shorl term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any Impairment. Loans receivable are measured initially at fair vaiue, net of transaction
costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 1es5 any impairment.
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

{f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and depasits wiih financial institutions repayable without pendity on nolice of net more than 24 hours, Cash
equivalents are highly liquid investmenis that mature in no more than theee monihs from the date of acquisition and that are readidy convertible 1o
knwram armounis of cash with insignificant risk of change in value,

{g} Financial instruments

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans and other accounls receivable and payable, are
intially measured ot present value of the future cash flows and subsequently ot amortised cost using the effective interest method. Oebt
instruments that are payahle or tecelvable within one year, typically trade payahles or receivables, e measured, initially end subsequently, al the
undiscountad amount of the cash or ather cansideration, expecied 1o be paid or received. However if the arrangements of a sharl-term instrument
constitute a financing transaction, kke the payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normal business terms or financed al a rate of interesl thal is
not a marked rate of in case of an outight short-lerm Joan not at market rate, the financial asset or liability is rmeasured, initially, al the present
value of the fulure cash flow discounted al a market rate of inlerest for a similar deb! insirument and subsequently at amortised cost,

Financial assels fhat are measured 2 cosl and amorised cost are assessed al the end ¢f each reporfing pericd for cbiective evidence of
impairment \f objective evidence of impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Financial assets and liabililies are offsel and 1he net amount reporied in the Statement of Financial Pasition when there is an enforceable night to
set off the recognised amounts and there is an interition to settle on a net basis o to realise the assel and settls the liabitity simuttaneeusly.

Dedvatives, including intarest rata swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not hasic financial instruments. Derivatives are initially
recognised at (air value on the date a derivative contract is entered inta and are subsequently re-maasured at their fair value Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised in profil or lass In finance costs or income as appropriate. The company does not currently apply hedge
accounting Tor interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives.

{h} Craditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank loans, are measured initially at fair value, net
of transaction cosls, and are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method

{1 Forslgn curency translation
Eunclional angd presentation cuoency
The Company's funclional and presentational currency is GBP,
10 bal.
Foreign currency transaclions are transiated into the functional currency using the spot exchanga rales at the dates of the lransactions.

At Bach period end foreign currency monslary ilems are translaled using the closing rate. Non-monetary items measured al historical cost are
transtaied using the exchange rate 3 the date of the transaction and nen-monetary items measured a8 fair value are measured vsing tha exchange
rate when fair value was detesmined,

Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the sefilement of lransactions and from the transiation at period-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and llabiities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement excepl when deferred in olher
cainprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Fareign exchange gains and losses that relate to bamowings are presented in the Income Statement within ‘linance income or costs'.
{l} Finance cosis

Finance costs are charged to the Income Statement aver the termt of the debt using the effeclive Interesl method 50 that the amount charged is at
a constant rate on the caiying amourit, Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capltal instrument.

(k) Dividends

Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally peyable. Interim gquity dividends are recognised when paid. Final equity dividends are
recognised when approved by the shareholders al an annual general meeting. Dividends on shares recognised as lbilities are recognised as
axpenses and classified within interest payabie.
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

{1} Inlerest incoma

Irderest mcome 1s recogrised in the Income Statement using the eHective interest method.

(m) Borrawing costs

Al borrowing costs ade recogrused in the Income Siatement in the year in which they are incurred.

(n) Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recogrised 1n the Income Stalemant, except that a change atiributable to
an ilem of income and expense recognised as other comprehensive income or 1a an ilem recognised direclly in equity is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equily respechively

The gueterd income tax charge is calculatled on the basrs of tax rales and laws that have been enacled o subsiantively enacted by the reporling
data in the countries where the Company operates and generates income,

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all iming differences thal have orginated bul not reversed by the Statement of Finaneial
Position date, except that:

= The recogrition of deferred tax assets is imiled to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversat of deferred tax
liabiities or other future taxable profits

«  Any defeired lax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been met

Deferred iax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except s respect of business combinations, when deferred lax is
recognised on the differences between the fair values of assels acquited and the future tax deductions availabie for them and the differences
between the fair values of liabiilies acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is detenmined using tax rates and faws thal
have been enacied of Subsiantively enacled by the reponing date.

{o) Share caplital transactlons

When the Campany purchases equity share capital, the amount of the consideration pald, including attributable costs, is recognised as a change
in reserves. Purchased shares are either held In treasury in order to satisfy future liabilitfes ansing from business combinations or share
insensitive scheme, or cancelied and [n order Ic maintain capitat an equivalent amount to the nominal value of the shares cancelled is \ransferred
from retained eamings.

The Company uses the Hyperion Insurance Group EBT ("EBT") to faciitate the purchase of shares in itseli. As the Company is the sponsoring
company of the EBT, the assets and the liabilities of the EBT are repored as part of the Company The EBT's assels are primarily shares of the
Company and liabilities relate lo deferred payments for the shares,

(p} Share-based payments

The cosl of employees’ senvicas rendered to subsidiaries received in exchange for the grant of rights under share Incentive schemes is measured
al the fair value of the equity scheme granted. Where there are performance conditions, as assessment 15 made of the tkedhood of these
conditions being achieved is made at the end of sach reporting year and reflected in the accounting entries made. The grani by the Company over
share incentive schemes lo employees of subsidlary undertakings is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee senvices
received, measured Dy raference fo the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the Company accounts.
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

3 Judgments in applying acconnting policies and kay sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimales and judgments thal have a significant effect on the carrying value of assats and liabifilies are.
{a) impaimmeniof assels

Assets are reviewed for impainment whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the camying amount of the assel exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable value of an asset is determined based on value-in-use calculailions or multipla earnings calculation prepared
on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates. For value in use calculations, assumptions inchude discount rates, cash generalion
polentiad and long term growth rales depending on regional economic performance and induslry irends. For multiple eamings calculations,
assumptions include adjustments to ustoric or projected eamings to form a baseling eaming end which multiple to use based on tecent market
trends,

4 Profit and loss account

As pesmitled by sechon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has nol included s own profit and loss account in these financial
statements, The Company's profit after 1ax for the year was £1.8m (2016' £5.7m). This is dealt with in the financial statements of the Group.

5 Dividends

The Company has nol declared any diidends dunng the year ended 30 September 2017 {2016 £nil).

6 Invastments
investments in
subsidlary
companies
£'000
Cost or valuation
Al 1 Oclober 2016 57,296
Additions 30,804
AL 30 September 2017 88,100
Provislon for impairment
At 1 October 2016 .
Charge for the perlod (3,538)
Al 30 September 2017 (3,538)
Net book value
At 30 September 2017 84,562
At 30 September 2016 57,296
For delails of all direcl and indirect investments in subsidiarias pledse sea note 37 of tha Group agcourds.
7 Amounts falling dua withln one year
2017 2016
£000 £'000
Other deblors o478 785
Amounis due from Group undertakings 9,999 151,064
10,477 151,849
2017 2016
Amounts falling due after more than one year £'000 £000
Loans to subsidiaries 385,736 414,910
Defecred tax - 1,289
385,736 416,209
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8 Cash and cash equivalents

207 2016
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 18,355 19,787

A portion of the Company's cash balance is not available for use due lo creditor restriclions. As at 30 September 2017, the Company's restricted
cash balance is £nil (2016: £18.7m}

g Craditors - amounts falling due within one year

2017 216
£'000 £000
Arnounts owed to Group undertakings (215,241) (297,030)
Accruals and defetred income {465) (952)
Deferred conzideration . (56,537)
Trade and other payables {2,904) {3.228)
Corporation lax payable {183) -
_ (218,793) (357.747)
10 Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
2017 2016
E'000 £'000
Sharehoider loan - (6,037)
Sharehoides loan notes - {4.966)
I - {11,003)
11 Loans
Analysis of the maturity of loans Is given below
2017 2046
£'000 £000
Amounts faliing due in 1-2 years
Shareholder loans - 6,037
Sharsholder loan notes - 4,966
- 11,003

The shareholder loans wete repad i the yoar

12 Financial instruments

The Company has granted put options to cerlain shareholders in respect of their Hyperion shares. The put options are camied at fair value. As the
instruments allows the holders to put Company shares back to the Company at fair value. the instrumenls have a fair value of nil. Management's
best estimate of the liability which would anse i all the oplions were exercised would be £5 1m as a1 30 Seplember 2017 {2016 £ni). Sensitivity
analysis, allowing for a reasonable change in assumplions indicates a maturity range of £4 6m-£5 6m

In respect of the liqudity put option [refer lo nofe 19 of the Group accounts), this has been extnguished during the year. Accoidingly
management’s best estimata of loan notes 1o be issued if the holders put ali their shares and received loan notes would be Enll {2016 £23 4m)
Sensitivity analysis, allowing for a reasonables change in assumptions indicated a matunty range of £49.7m - £27 Tm in the prior year.

87



HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 10 SEPTEMBER 2017

413 Deferred 1ax

Deferred tax
£'q0e
At 1 October 2016 1,299
Released n year {1,2499)
At 30 September 2017 .
The deferred tax balance is made up as follows.
207 2016
£'000 £000
Losses camed jorward - 1,298
- 1,299
e —

The Company has unrecognised trade losses of £0.7m {2016 - £6.8m) available for offset against fulure ncome, subject 10 cerain restriclions.
14 Share capital

Detalts of the Company's share capital are given in the Group financia! stalements on note 24.

2017 2016
£000 £000
Allotted, cafted up and fulty paid
79,632,165 (2016; 79,567,197) A ordinary shares of £0.01 each 796 796
1,479,000 [2016: 1,479,000) B ordinary shares of E0.01 each 15 15
4,281,000 (2016 4,281,000} C ordinary shares of £0.01 each 43 43
35,620,778 (2016: 21,000,867} D ordinary shares of £0.90001 sach . .
7,300,000 (2016: 3,460,000) E ordinary shares of £0.00001 each . .
854 854

15 Treasury shares
The Company holds shares in itself via the Hyperion !nsurance Group EBT. Refer to note 24 of the Group accounts for further deta,
16 Cther resarves

Share premium

This reserve reconds the amount above the nominal value received for shares sold, less transaction cosls.
Capital red .

This reserva records the nominal vaiue of shares repurchased by the company.

Other regerves

This reserve relates to shares hald In itsell via the HIG EBT, along with any profits made on transactions with these shares and the ransiation
reserve which contains the accumulaled foreign exchange differences arising on translation of investments.

Erofit and foss eccount
Mada up of all curent and prior peviod retained profits and losses.
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17 Employees

Tha average monthly number of persons emplayed by the Company during the year was 3 {2016: 3), who were the Direclors

2017 2016
£000 £000

Employee costs
Wages and salaries 3,300 2,782
Pension contribution 10 114
Share based paytnent 144 209
3,454 1,105

18 Share based payments

Refer to the Group accounts for details of shars based payments. The Company recognised a charge of £Q 2m and has no employees bulrs the
ultmalte sellhing enbity for certain awards lo subsidiades, The Company recognised an increase in investments in subsidianes of £1 4m in respect
of share-based payments.

13 Contingent Habilitles

On 29 April 2015, the ulimate parent company Hyperion Insurance Group Limiled along with wholly owned subsidiaries HIG Fnance Limited and
Hypericn Refinance S.ar.l., entered inlo a financing agreement with Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., Royal Bank of Canada, HSBC Bank
pic, Lloyds Bank plc, Royal Bank of Scotfand and (NG Capital LLC. Unders the terms of this agreement, the company together with a number of
other subsidiaries have given guarantees in respect of HIG Finance Limited's and Hyperion Refinance S.a.r.1's oblgations under the terms of the
agreement,

The Company has given parental guaraniees to members of wholiy-owned UK subsidiaries relaling to outstanding Gabfities to which the
subsidiary companies are subject to.

20 Relatad party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion available in FRS 102 ta nat disclose related party transactions with subsidiaries that are
wholly owned within the group.

Details of balances and transactions with related pariies that are not wholly owned are shown in the beiow tables.

2017 2016
£000 £'000
Debtors/(creditors) at 30 September
FP Marine Risks Limited 3,750 3.427
Howden insurance LLC (764) {799)
2,986 2628
Interast incomal{expense)
FP Marine Risks Limited 138 135
139 135

For details of related party transactions with key management personnel please refer ta nole 8 and 33 of the Group accounts

21 Post balance sheet events

See note 38 of the Group actounts for delails of all events occuring after the balance sheet date.
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